
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                      ( MAY 16) (Week 20 of 2023) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                      
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark Nelson             Keith W. Radig        Jeremy Taylor             Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held May 16, 2023, at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
 
3:30 p.m.     Closed Session {Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c.)} 

                      First Floor Boardroom 

 
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

 

Items 2 through 9 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                     2.  Approval of the minutes of the May 9, 2023, meeting 

 

                     3.  Approval of claims  

 

                     4.  Deputy Commissioner of Elections – Steve Hofmeyer 

                          Receive the appointment of Micah Lang to fill the vacancy of the office of WIT Director District I 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

                     5.  County Treasurer – Tina Bertrand 

                          a.  Approval of resolution for a tax abatement for Lake Forest MHC 

                          b.  Approval of resolution for a tax abatement for Yes Homesales 

                          c.  Approval of resolution for a tax abatement for Dream Homes 

                          d.  Approval to refund request for overpayment of taxes for parcel #894735156022 in the   

                               amount of $5,358.00 

                          e.  Approval of resolution for a tax abatement for Woodbury County, Iowa parcels   

                               #884301100009 and #884301100010 

                          f.  Approval of resolution for a tax abatement for Woodbury County, Iowa parcels   

                              #884714300001, #884723100001, #884723100002 and #884723100004 

 

                     6.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                          a.  Approval of lifting tax suspension for petitioners who failed to re-certify their income or   

                               income does not qualify for continued tax suspension 

                          b.  Approval of resolution thanking and commending Jennifer Johnson for her years of service   

                               with Woodbury County 

                          c.  Approval of resolution thanking and commending Stephanie Powell for her years of service   

                               with Woodbury County 

 

                     7.  County Auditor – Patrick Gill 

                          a.  Approval of Liquor License Application for Correctionville Golf Club, Correctionville 

                          b.  Approval of Liquor License Application for Backpocket Brewing LLC, Moville 

 

                     8.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                          Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                       

                     9.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                          Approval of permit to work in the right of way for Jeff Stewart 

 

End Consent Agenda 

 

                  10.  Approval of appointment to the Civil Service Commission                                                Action 

 

4:40 p.m.  11.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

(Set time)         a.  Public hearing on the FY 24 county maximum property tax dollars                              Action 

                         b.  Approval of resolution of FY 24 county maximum property tax dollars                         Action 

 

4:45 p.m.  12.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

(Set time)         a.  Receive the updated county staff report concerning proposed amendment                 Action 

                             to Ordinance #56 

                        b.  Public hearing for an ordinance to amend portions of Woodbury County                     Action 

                             Ordinance #56: Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind turbines set 

                             back requirements to increase certain setback requirements to the 

                             ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in 

                             unincorporated Woodbury County 

                        c.  Conduct and approve the second reading of the ordinance amendment                      Action   

 

                 13.  Summit Carbon Solutions – Riley Gibson 

                        Summit Carbon Solutions Project update                                                                   Information 

 



 

 

                 14.  WCICC-IT – John Malloy 

                        Approval of Sidwell Parcel Fabric Migration Agreement                                                  Action 

 

                 15.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                        Approval of contract for HMA Rout and Seal 2023 project with Sioux                              Action 

                        Commercial Sweeping for $25,136.00 

 

                 16.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                        a.  Approval to increase EMS holidays worked pay to double for 24 hours                       Action 

                             and holiday benefit pay for 12 hours 

                        b.  Approval of purchase of the Cyber Liability Insurance policy for FY 23/24                  Action 

                        c.  Approval of the updated Security Awareness resolution, the new Security                 Action 

                             Awareness policy for Woodbury County employees using the WCICC-IT 

                             network and the updated Acceptable Use-Technology policy for all  

                             Woodbury County employees 

 

                 17.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                        a.  Discussion on H.F. 718 relating to Iowa Property Tax Reform Bill                         Information 

                        b.  Approval of letter of support for Kosovich & Murphy Developments                             Action 

                             application for the Iowa Workforce Housing Tax Credits 

 

                 18.  Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung 

                        a.  Approval of joint representation letter of Woodbury County in Iowa Utilities                 Action 

                             Board Pipeline Permit proceedings, Navigator Heartland Greenway 

                        b.  Approval of joint representation letter of Woodbury County in Iowa Utilities                 Action 

                             Board Pipeline Permit Proceedings, Summit Carbon Solutions 

                        c.  Approval of engagement letter with Ahlers & Cooney for representation                      Action 

                             in the matter of hazardous liquid pipeline permits and regulations 

 

                 19.  Board of Supervisors – Jeremy Taylor & Mark Nelson 

                        Information regarding future direction and recommendations for Climbing                Information 

                        Hills Emergency Services Building 

 

                 20.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                 Information 

   

                 21.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                         Information 

  

                 22.  Board Concerns                                                                                                          Information      

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                 

 
 

WED., MAY 17     12:00 p.m.           Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 
THU., MAY 18        4:30 p.m.           Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
FRI., MAY 19       12:00 p.m.           Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave.                 
 

MON., MAY 22      6:00 p.m.           Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom              
                                                             
WED., MAY 24      2:30 p.m.           Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU, MAY 25      11:00 a.m.           Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122   
                                                         Pierce St. 
 
                            11:15 a.m.            Western Iowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund - Hybrid   
 
MON., JUNE 5      6:00 p.m.           Board of Adjustment meeting, First Floor Boardroom 
 
WED., JUNE 7    10:00 a.m.           Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa 
 
                            11:00 a.m.           Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting 
 
                              1:00 p.m.           Loess Hills Alliance Full Board Meeting   
 
                              4:45 p.m.           Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.                           
                                        
                            12:00 p.m.           District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                              
 
THU., JUNE 8     12:00 p.m.          SIMPCO Board of Directors, 1122 Pierce St. 
                              

                              4:00 p.m.          Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
 

WED., JUNE 14    7:30 a.m.          SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee - Hybrid  
 
                             8:05 a.m.           Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                            10:00 a.m.          Western Iowa Tourism Region Annual Meeting, Audubon County 
 
THU., JUNE 15     4:30 p.m.          Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
                              5:00 p.m.          SIMPCO Annual Board of Directors Meeting & Award Ceremony, Mapleton, IA 
 
FRI., JUNE 16    12:00 p.m.           Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave.                                                                                              
 
 WED. JUNE 21  12:00 p.m.          Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

   
 

 

 

 

           

 

 

 

 

               
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



MAY 9, 2023, NINETEENTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, May 9, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Bittinger II, Nelson, 
Taylor, Radig, and Ung.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Dennis Butler, Budget 
and Finance Director, Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director, Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, and 
Michelle Skaff, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 

 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
  
1. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the agenda for May 9, 2023.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
   
 Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the May 2, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3. To approve the claims totaling $997,886.64.  Copy filed. 
 
4. To approve an application for a 12-month, Class C Retail Liquor License, with Outdoor Services Sales privileges for 

Oscar Carl Vineyard, effective 06/02/2023 through 06/01/2024.  Copy filed. 
 
5. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution setting the public hearing and sale of parcel 

#894728127010, 613-15 13th St. 
 

RESOLUTION #13,589 
NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE 

 
WHEREAS Woodbury County, Iowa was the owner under a tax deed of a certain parcel of real estate described as: 
 
The W 50 feet of Lot 7, the W 50 feet of the South half of Lot 8, the W 30 feet of the North half of Lot 8 and the W 
25 feet of the S 23 feet of Lot 9, all in Block 83 Sioux City East Addition, City of Sioux City, in the County of 
Woodbury County and State of Iowa (613-15 13th Street) 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa as follows: 
 
1.   That a public hearing on the aforesaid proposal shall be held on 
       the 23rd Day of May, 2023 at 4:35 o’clock p.m. in the basement of the    
       Woodbury County Courthouse.  

 
2.   That said Board proposes to sell the said parcel of real estate at a 
      public auction to be held on the 23rd Day of May, 2023, immediately 
      following the closing of the public hearing. 

 
3.  That said Board proposes to sell the said real estate to the highest 

bidder at or above a total minimum bid of $49100 plus recording fees.  
 

4.  That this resolution, preceded by the caption "Notice of Property Sale" 
      and except for this subparagraph 4 be published as notice of the 
      aforesaid proposal, hearing and sale.  
 
Dated this 9th Day of May, 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
6. To receive for signatures a Resolution Thanking and Commending Michael Gray for his years of service with 

Woodbury County. 



May 9, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 
 

 

 

 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

RESOLUTION #13,590 
A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

MICHAEL GRAY 
FOR HIS SERVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Michael Gray has capably served Woodbury County as an employee of the Woodbury County Secondary 
Roads for 28 years from October 23, 1995 to June 30, 2023 
 
WHEREAS, the service given by Michael Gray as a Woodbury County employee, has been characterized by his 
dedication to the best interests of the citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 
undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Michael Gray for his years of service to Woodbury 
County; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below that the future hold only the best for this very 
deserving person, Michael Gray. 
 
BE IT SO RESOLVED this 9th day of May 2023. 

 WOODBURY CUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 Copy filed. 
 
7a. To approve the reclassification of Theodore Karrer, Custodian, Building Services Dept., effective 05-01-23, 

$21.24/hour, 2.4%=$.50/hr. Increase due to Asbestos certification.; the reclassification of Cathia Wise, Custodian, 
Building Services Dept., effective 05-01-23, $18.55/hour, 2.7%=$.50/hr. Increase due to Asbestos certification.; the 
reclassification of Ian Klemke, Maintenance Technician, Building Services Dept., effective 05-01-23, $23.36/hour, 
2%=$.50/hr.  Increase due to Asbestos certification.; the reclassification of Jon Mouw, Maintenance Technician, 
Building Services Dept., effective 05-01-23, $23.36/hour, 2%=$.50/hr.  Increase due to Asbestos certification.; the  
reclassification of Steven Roder, Maintenance Technician, Building Services Dept., effective 05-01-23, $25.75/hour, 
2%=$.50/hr.  Increase due to Asbestos certification.; the reclassification of Craig Steig, Maintenance Technician, 
Building Services Dept., effective 05-01-23, $25.75/hour, 2%=$.50/hr.  Increase due to Asbestos certification.; the 
reclassification of Terry Svendsen, Maintenance Worker, Building Services Dept., effective 05-01-23, $25.75/hour, 
2%=$.50/hr.  Increase due to Asbestos certification.; the other of Rocky De Witt, P/T Courthouse Safety & Security 
Officer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 05-01-23, $23.37/hour, 0%.  Change to P/T On-Call Status.; the appointment 
of Kiely Novak, Temporary Engineering Aide, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 06-01-23, $16.50/hour.  Not to 
exceed 120 days.; and the separation of Michael Gray, District Foreman, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 06-30-
23. Retirement.  Copy filed. 

 
7b.  To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for District 

Foreman, Secondary Roads Dept.  Wage Plan:  $2,742.94 - $2,932.05/bi-weekly.; and Assistant to the County 
Engineer, Secondary Roads Dept.  Wage Plan:  $92,874.77/year, $3,572.11/bi-weekly.  Copy filed. 

 
7c. To approve Jennifer Johnson and Stephanie Powell to remain on County Health insurance.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0. 
 
8. Motion by Radig second by Bittinger to approve a permit to work in the county right of way for Certified Testing 

Services.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
11. There were no citizen concerns. 
 



May 9, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                                      Page 3 
 

 

 

12.  Board concerns were heard. 
 
9a. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to receive county staff report concerning proposed amendments to Ordinance 

#56.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
9b. A public hearing was held at 4:45 p.m. for an ordinance to amend portions of Woodbury County Ordinance #56:  

Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind turbines set back requirements to increase certain setback 
requirements to the ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in unincorporated 
Woodbury County. 

 
 Motion by Ung second by Radig to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
 Kathy Hoffmann, Correctionville Mayor, Larry Fillipi, Anthon, Jim Fisher, Moville Mayor, Dan Hair, Humbolt Ave, 

Hornick, William dougherty, Urbandale, Doyle Turner, Moville. 
 
 Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to receive damage from wind turbine from Mr. Hair. Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
9c. Motion by Radig second by Bittinger to approve the first reading of the ordinance amendment.  Carried 5-0.  Copy 

filed. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until May 16, 2023. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 







 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 
RESOLUTION #  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES  
 

 
WHEREAS, Lake Forest MHC is the titleholder of a mobile home VIN #19A19896 located 
in Woodbury County, Iowa and legally described as follows:   
 

VIN #19A19896 1991 Chief Mobile Home 

   
WHEREAS, the above-stated mobile home has taxes payable including special 
assessments and the mobile home is owned by Lake Forest MHC. 
 
WHEREAS, these taxes are uncollectable or impractical to pursue collection through 
personal judgment or tax sale. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of 
these taxes and;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing on the above mobile home according to 
Code of Iowa, 445.16 for the taxes owed and hereby directs the Woodbury County 
Treasurer to abate these aforementioned taxes from the tax records. 
  
SO RESOLVED this 16th day of May, 2023. 
 
 

 ATTEST:                                                    WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
__________________________                    __________________________________ 
Michelle Skaff, Deputy                                             Matthew Ung, Chairman 
Woodbury County Auditor/Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES  
 

 
WHEREAS, Yes Homesales is the titleholder of a mobile home VIN #114575D2143 
located in Woodbury County, Iowa and legally described as follows:   
 

VIN #114575D2143 1974 Titan Mobile Home 

    
WHEREAS, the above-stated mobile home has taxes payable including special 
assessments and the mobile home is owned by Yes Homesales. 
 
WHEREAS, these taxes are uncollectable or impractical to pursue collection through 
personal judgment or tax sale. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of 
these taxes and;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing on the above mobile home according to 
Code of Iowa, 445.16 for the taxes owed and hereby directs the Woodbury County 
Treasurer to abate these aforementioned taxes from the tax records. 
  
SO RESOLVED this 16th day of May, 2023. 
 
 

 ATTEST:                                                    WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
__________________________                    __________________________________ 
Michelle Skaff, Deputy                                            Matthew Ung, Chairman 
Woodbury County Auditor/Recorder 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES  
 

 
WHEREAS, Dream Homes is the titleholder of a mobile home VIN #05971481054 located 
in Woodbury County, Iowa and legally described as follows:   
 

VIN #05971481054 1997 Forest Park Mobile Home 

   
WHEREAS, the above-stated mobile home has taxes payable including special 
assessments and the mobile home is owned by Dream Homes. 
 
WHEREAS, these taxes are uncollectable or impractical to pursue collection through 
personal judgment or tax sale. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of 
these taxes and;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing on the above parcel according to Code of 
Iowa, 445.16 for the taxes owed and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to 
abate these aforementioned taxes from the tax records. 
  
SO RESOLVED this 16th day of May, 2023. 
 
 

 ATTEST:                                                    WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
__________________________                    __________________________________ 
Michelle Skaff, Deputy                                             Matthew Ung, Chairman 
Woodbury County Auditor/Recorder 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 
RESOLUTION #  ____ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES  

 
WHEREAS, Woodbury County, Iowa is the titleholder of real estate Parcels 
#884301100009 and #884301100010 located Woodbury County, Iowa and legally 
described as follows:   

 
Parcel # 884301100009 
KEDRON TOWNSHIP BRIESE FIRST ADDITION LOT 3 
 
Parcel #884301100010 
KEDRON TOWNSHIP BRIESE FIRST ADDITION LOT 4 
 

 
WHEREAS, the above-stated property has an unpaid balance of taxes owing, and the 
parcel is owned by a political subdivision of the state; and 
 
WHEREAS, the political subdivision, namely the Woodbury County, Iowa is failing to 
immediately pay the taxes due; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of 
these taxes; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing on the above parcel according to Code of 
Iowa, 427.3 and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to abate these 
aforementioned taxes from the tax records. 
 
SO RESOLVED this 16th day of May 2023. 
 
 

      ATTEST:                                                                        WOODBURYCOUNTYBOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
_____________________________                     _________________________________ 
Michelle Skaff, Deputy                                          Matthew Ung, Chairman 
Woodbury County Auditor/Recorder 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  ____ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES  
 
WHEREAS, the Woodbury County, Iowa are the titleholders of real estate Parcels 
#884714300001, #884723100001, #884723100002 and #884723100004 located in Woodbury 
County, Iowa and legally described as follows:   

 
Parcel #884714300001 
                                        
Woodbury Township NW SW & SW SW 14-88-47 
 
Parcel #884723100001 
 
Woodbury Township NW NW 23-88-47 
 
Parcel #884723100002 
 
Woodbury Township SW NW 23-88-47 
 
Parcel #884723100004 
 
Woodbury Township SW of RD E ½ NW 23-88-47                                                                          
                                                                                                                   

WHEREAS, the above-stated property has an unpaid balance of taxes owing, and the parcel is 
owned by a political subdivision of the state; and 
 
WHEREAS, the political subdivision, namely the Woodbury County, Iowa, is failing to immediately 
pay the taxes due; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of these 
taxes and any future taxes that may be levied against this parcel; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby 
abates the taxes owing on the above parcels according to Code of Iowa, 427.3, and hereby directs 
the Woodbury County Treasurer to abate these aforementioned taxes from the tax records.  
 
SO RESOLVED this 16th day of May, 2023. 
 
 

      ATTEST:                                                                        WOODBURYCOUNTYBOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_____________________________                     __________________________________ 
Michelle Skaff, Deputy                                              Matthew Ung, Chairman 
Woodbury County Auditor 
And Recorder 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

5/11/23 5/16/23

Karen James, Administrative Assistant

✔

✔

Approval of lifting tax suspensions for petitioners who failed to re-certify their income or income
does not qualify for continued tax suspension

Annually, the Board of Supervisors requires those receiving tax suspensions to re-certify their income. Those petitioners who fail to re-certify their income by the
deadline or if their income does not qualify for continued tax suspension, will be turned over to the Board of Supervisors for action on lifting the tax suspension.

None

To lift the tax suspension of the petitioners that are listed on the attachment.

Approval of lifting tax suspensions for petitioners who failed to re-certify their income or income does not
qualify for continued tax suspension.



 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.______ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Jennifer Johnson 
 

FOR hER sErVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Jennifer Johnson has capably served Woodbury County as an 

employee of the Siouxland District Health Department for 34 years from December 
11, 1989 to July 14, 2023 
 

WHEREAS, the service given by Jennifer Johnson as a Woodbury County 

employee, has been characterized by her dedication to the best interests of the 
citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 

undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Jennifer Johnson for her 
years of service to Woodbury County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below 

that the future hold only the best for this very deserving person, Jennifer Johnson. 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 16th day of May 2023. 

 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman               Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
 Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member    Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
 
                                          ________________________ 
                                               Mark E. Nelson, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 
 



 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.______ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Stephanie Powell 
 

FOR hER sErVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Stephanie Powell has capably served Woodbury County as an 

employee of the Siouxland District Health Department for 19 years from August 9, 
2004 to October 2, 2023 
 

WHEREAS, the service given by Stephanie Powell as a Woodbury County 

employee, has been characterized by her dedication to the best interests of the 
citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 

undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Stephanie Powell for her 
years of service to Woodbury County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below 

that the future hold only the best for this very deserving person, Stephanie Powell. 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 16th day of May 2023. 

 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman               Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
 Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member    Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
 
                                          ________________________ 
                                               Mark E. Nelson, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 
 





































APPROVAL OF FY24 MAXIMUM PROPERTY TAX DOLLARS  

RESOLUTION #_________ 

WHEREAS, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors have considered the proposed 

FY24 county maximum property tax dollars for both General County Services and Rural County 

Services, and 

WHEREAS, a notice concerning the proposed county maximum property tax dollars was 

published as required and posted on county web site and/or social media accounts if applicable, 

and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the proposed county maximum property tax 

dollars was held on May 16, 2023,  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury 

County that the maximum property tax dollars for General County Services and Rural County 

Services for FY24 shall not exceed the following: 

General County Services - $34,269,177 

Rural County Services - $3,806,583 

            The Maximum Property Tax dollars requested in either General County Services or Rural 

County Services for FY24 represents an increase over 102% from the Maximum Property Tax 

dollars requested for FY23  

 

 
                                                                         
ATTEST:                                                    WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
__________________________                    __________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill                                                         Matthew A. Ung, Chairman 
Woodbury County Auditor/Recorder 

 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

5/11/23 5/16/23 4:45

Daniel Priestley

✔ ✔

✔ ✔

A) Receive updated staff report concerning proposed amendments to Ordinance #56. B) Public Hearing for an ordinance to amend
portions of Woodbury County Ordinance #56: Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements to increase
certain setback requirements to the Ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in Unincorporated Woodbury
County. C) Approve the 2nd Reading of the Ordinance Amendment

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS TO WOODBURY COUNTY ORDINANCE #56: AMENDMENTS TO MODIFY
SECTION 6.1.A: WIND TURBINES SET BACK REQUIREMENTS TO INCREASE CERTAIN SETBACK REQUIREMENTS TO
THE ORDINANCE REGULATING COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS IN UNINCORPORATED
WOODBURY COUNTY.

The Board will hold a public hearing and the first reading of the proposed ordinance to amend portions of Woodbury County
Ordinance #56: Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements to increase certain setback
requirements to the Ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in Unincorporated Woodbury County.
Amendment #1: On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for the City Limits
Protected Area from 600 feet to 2 miles. Amendment #2: On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set
Back Requirement for the Public Conservation Protected Area from 600 feet or 110% of total height (whichever is greater) to 2,640
feet or 4.5x tower height (whichever is greater).

0

Receive the updated county staff report.

Open and close the public hearing. (Set Time: 4:45 PM)

Conduct and approve the second reading of the ordinance.

The 3rd public hearing and reading of the ordinance has been scheduled for Tuesday, May 23 at 4:45 PM.

A) Motion to receive the updated county staff report concerning proposed amendments to Ordinance #56.

B) Open and close the Public Hearing (Set Time: 4:45 PM) for an ordinance to amend portions of Woodbury County Ordinance #56:
Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements to increase certain setback requirements to the
Ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in Unincorporated Woodbury County.

C) Motion to conduct and approve the 2nd Reading of the Ordinance Amendment



 

 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PORTIONS OF WOODBURY COUNTY ORDINANCE #56: AN 
AMENDMENT TO MODIFY SECTION 6.1.A: WIND TURBINES SET BACK REQUIREMENTS 
TO INCREASE CERTAIN SETBACK REQUIREMENTS IN THE ORDINANCE REGULATING 
COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS IN UNINCORPORATED 
WOODBURY COUNTY. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 
 
AMENDMENT #1: 
 
On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for 
the City Limits Protected Area from 600 feet to 2 miles. 
 
AMENDMENT #2: 
 
On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for 
the Public Conservation Protected Area from 600 feet or 110% of total height (whichever is 
greater) to 2,640 feet or 4.5x tower height (whichever is greater). 
 
Adopted this ____ day of ______, 2023 
 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

______________________________ 
Matthew Ung, Chairman 

______________________________ 
Jeremy Taylor, Vice Chairman 

______________________________ 
Daniel Bittinger II 

______________________________ 
Mark Nelson 

______________________________ 
Keith Radig 

Adoption Timeline 
___________________: Public Hearing and 1st Reading 
___________________: Public Hearing and 2nd Reading 
___________________: Public Hearing and 3rd Reading 
___________________: Adopted 
___________________: Published/Effective Date 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

5/9/2023 5/16/2023

Steven Faught, Representing Summit Carbon Solutions

Summit Carbon Solutions Project Update
Riley Gibson, Presenter

This is a request for placement of a Summit Carbon Solutions project update on the 5/16/23 Commission 
meeting agenda. 

Riley Gibson will provide a brief (approx. 15 min) update on the SCS project.







WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

05/10/2023 05/16/2023

John Malloy, WCICC-IT CIO

✔

✔

✔

Approve Sidwell Parcel Fabric Migration Agreement

WCICC-IT requests BOS approval of the Sidwell Parcel Fabric Migration Agreement.

The City of Sioux City and Woodbury County use the Environmental Systems Research Institute’s (ESRI) ArcGIS software to maintain GIS-related data, including real-estate 
related parcel data.  Several years ago, the County adopted Sidwell’s Parcel Builder Administrator (PBA) product to maintain its property data in ESRI’s ArcGIS Desktop software.  
Since this time ESRI has developed parcel fabric model technology.  This has become the industry standard for maintenance of property records.  The Sidwell PBA product was 
inaugurated prior to the advent of parcel fabric technology and the coincident boundary editing methodology that it uses is no longer supported in current versions of Sidwell’s 
software.  Additionally, the ESRI ArcGIS Desktop product is soon to reach the end of its serviceable life in March of 2025.  The replacement product, ArcGIS Pro, is only 
compatible with parcel fabric technology.  The only means of continuing to use our data in a supported software platform is migration to parcel fabric.

$39,245.00 to be equally split between Woodbury County, City of Sioux City, City Assessor Office and County 
Assessor's Office.

Approval of Sidwell Parcel Fabric Migration Agreement

Motion to approve the Sidwell Parel Fabric Migration Agreement



  

  
 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 • Over 90 years of experience 

• Trusted partner to hundreds of local 
governments 

• Esri Gold Partner 

• GIS data experts 

• Award-winning GIS applications 

• Innovative application of Esri technology  

• Customers in over 40 states  

• Nationally and internationally recognized 

• Outstanding customer service 

 
 

Woodbury County, IA 
Parcel Fabric Migration Services 



 
                                                                   
   

 
1 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

                                                                     

Contents 
 
Contents .................................................................................................................................. 1 

1. Preamble .............................................................................................................................. 2 

2. Scope of Work ..................................................................................................................... 3 

2.1 Project Initiation ............................................................................................................... 3 

2.1.1 Kick-Off Meeting ........................................................................................................ 3 

2.1.2 Workflow Discovery ................................................................................................... 3 

2.2 Parcel Fabric Migration .................................................................................................... 3 

2.2.1 Data Cleanup ............................................................................................................. 4 

2.2.2 Data Staging .............................................................................................................. 5 

2.2.3 Data Loading ............................................................................................................. 5 

2.2.4 Pilot Delivery .............................................................................................................. 6 

2.2 ArcGIS Portal Deployment ............................................................................................... 6 

2.3 Implementation & Training ............................................................................................... 7 

2.3.1 Installation and Delivery ............................................................................................. 7 

2.3.2 Basic ArcGIS Pro Training ......................................................................................... 7 

2.3.3 Advanced Parcel Editing in ArcGIS Pro Training ........................................................ 8 

2.4 Parcel Fabric Workflow Support ....................................................................................... 9 

3. Project Costs ..................................................................................................................... 10 

4. Additional Provisions ....................................................................................................... 11 

5. Authorization ..................................................................................................................... 15 

 
  



 
                                                                   
   

 
2 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

1. Preamble 
 
 
THIS CONTRACT (“contract”) is made by between THE SIDWELL COMPANY (a 
subsidiary of Harris Computer Corporation), an Illinois corporation with its principal place of 
business located in St. Charles, Illinois, hereinafter called “Sidwell,” as party of the first part, 
and WOODBURY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of IOWA, hereinafter called 
the “Agency,” as party of the second part, WITNESSETH: 
  
WHEREAS, Sidwell is in the business of providing Geographic Information Services and 
other Professional Services for various governmental agencies in the United States; and   
  
WHEREAS, the Agency is desirous of having Sidwell provide Geographic Information 
Services and/or other Professional Services; and 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements made herein, the recitals 
of fact hereinabove set forth, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows.  
 
Sidwell will perform the services described in the scope of work that follows and the Agency 
will make the payments set forth in Sections “Project Costs” and “Additional Provisions”, 
below.  

 
  



 
                                                                   
   

 
3 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

2. Scope of Work 
2.1 Project Initiation  
2.1.1 Kick-Off Meeting 
Sidwell will schedule a remote project initiation or “kick-off” meeting with the appropriate 
personnel to set project expectations, acquire necessary data and establish timelines for 
the completion of the project. A Project Manager from Sidwell will be introduced as the 
primary contact on behalf of Sidwell during this meeting. 
 
The Project Manager will provide recommendations for handling the pause in data 
updates during the migration and leveraging any backlogs for the training.  
 
2.1.2 Workflow Discovery  
The Sidwell Project Manager will ensure current workflows are well understood in order 
to design and train staff members with efficiencies and best practices for training. Sidwell 
will have discussions with Agency staff to develop an understanding of current workflows 
and processes to propose improvements in the next phase of the project.  
 
The Agency will also provide Sidwell necessary access and credentials to all Esri 
environments to ensure final loading of data, software and for proper deployment of 
ArcGIS Portal.   
 

2.2 Parcel Fabric Migration 
Sidwell will migrate the Agency’s existing parcel dataset to the parcel fabric framework 
model for ArcGIS Pro.  The project geodatabase will be enabled with the latest schema 
and functionality available for the current working version of ArcGIS Pro at the time of 
delivery. Sidwell will adhere to established criteria for final delivery to ensure the 
Agency’s satisfaction.  
 
The parcel fabric migration package includes:  
 

• Assessment of existing parcel types and attribute schema 
• Removal of duplicate features (if applicable) 
• Optimization of parcel fabric for ArcGIS Pro (record types, attribute rules, etc.) 
• Delivery of an ArcGIS Pro project 

Sidwell will take the necessary steps to stage and load existing parcel features into the 
new parcel fabric and then tune the fabric for performance.  All existing scripts and/or 



 
                                                                   
   

 
4 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

services that function in the ArcGIS Desktop environment will be tested and configured 
for use in ArcGIS Pro.  This includes but is not limited to:  
 

• Data flows to the Agency’s public facing parcel viewer 
• Backend scripts that join the cadastral data to tax and CAMA systems  

 
2.2.1 Data Cleanup 
Sidwell will perform the following cleanup procedures on the existing data prior to staging 
the data for conversion into the parcel fabric: 
 
2.2.1.1 Parcel Topology 
All polygons will be dropped to line features and topologies will be created between each 
set of lines and polygons. Attribute information for each polygon will be stored as points 
to allow recovery of attribute information using spatial analysis techniques. Each 
topology will have the following rules enforced between the two feature classes (‘Parcel’ 
is interchangeable with subdivision, section, etc.). Coincidence between parcel, 
subdivision, section and township boundaries will be optimized during the cleanup 
process where there is clear evidence of coincidence. 

 
Topology Rules 

 

Feature Classes 
Parcel Line 
 
 
 
 
 
Parcel Polygon 

Rules  
Must be Covered by Boundary of 
Parcel Polygon 
Must not Self-Overlap 
Must not Self-Intersect 
Must be Single Part 
Must Not Intersect or Touch Interior 
Boundary Must Be Covered by 
Parcel Line 

 
Topology errors will be flagged and corrected using the Esri topology tools. Furthermore, 
there will be work performed on each set to ensure that parcels are coincident with each 
other topological throughout the conversion process. 

 
2.2.1.2 Simplifying Curves 
Sidwell will identify curve features that are densified arcs (multi-segment lines that are a 
series of small straight segments mimicking a curve rather than a true curve) and change 
them into true curves. This will lessen the number of features loaded into the fabric and 
improve performance. 

 
 



 
                                                                   
   

 
5 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

2.2.1.3 Recreate Polygons 
Sidwell will use the cleaned lines to recreate improved parcel polygons. If there are 
attributes that need to be converted to the new parcel fabric from the existing parcel 
features, they will be retained at this stage as well. 
 
2.2.1.4 Reconfiguration of Cadastral Line 
Sidwell will deliver the existing cadastral line feature class intact with the parcel, 
subdivision, section, road right-of-way and township tags removed. In some cases, this 
will delete lines if they only have one or more of these tags exclusively. The Agency will 
be free to continue to use the cadastral line feature class with the remaining tags if they 
wish. 
 
2.2.2 Data Staging  
After the data is determined to be clean, features will be loaded into a staging 
geodatabase, which allows for schema and attribute requirements to be enacted on the 
data prior to loading the features into the target parcel fabric. Features will be sorted into 
the correct staging layers and categorized in a manner recognizable to the parcel fabric 
schema.  
 
2.2.3 Data Loading 
After properly staging the data, Sidwell will load the data into a geodatabase.  The project 
geodatabase will be enabled with the latest schema and functionality available for the 
current working version of ArcGIS Pro at the time of delivery. All attributes from each 
layer will be retained unless notified by the Agency.  
 
2.2.3.1 Create Parcel Fabric Geodatabase 
Sidwell will convert and load the staged Agency parcel features into an Esri ArcGIS 
geodatabase using the most current ArcGIS Pro parcel fabric data model at the time of 
conversion.  
 
2.2.3.2 Load Staging Data 
Using ArcGIS Pro geoprocessing tools, Sidwell will load the data from the staging 
geodatabase into the parcel fabric. The data will be loaded in stages for each type of 
feature.  

 
2.2.3.3 Testing 
Sidwell will perform a series of testing procedures and minor edits on the data to ensure 
that it was loaded correctly and can utilize the intended functions and tools.  
 



 
                                                                   
   

 
6 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

2.2.4 Pilot Delivery  
Sidwell will schedule one (1) day with the Agency to perform the following tasks:  
 
2.2.4.1 Pilot Township  
Sidwell will first perform a remote delivery of the completed parcel fabric geodatabase 
for Arlington Township.  The Agency will have 30 days to become acclimated with the 
parcel fabric dataset in the ArcGIS Pro environment.  After Agency approval, Sidwell will 
continue constructing the parcel fabric for the remaining townships.   
 
2.2.4.2 Reconfiguration of Parcel Administrator 
Sidwell will reconfigure the Agency’s existing Parcel Administrator installation to reflect 
the new geodatabase, parcel maintenance and parcel publishing environments within 
ArcGIS Pro. This reconfiguration will enable additional tools within Parcel Administrator 
for working with fabric history. 
 
2.2.4.3 Training 
To help support working with the new pilot township parcel fabric geodatabase, Sidwell 
will provide training on parcel fabric editing in the ArcGIS Pro environment.  
 

2.2 ArcGIS Portal Deployment 
Comprised of four software components, ArcGIS Enterprise will introduce a smoother 
way to apply security, analyze data, collaborate and create cross-platform maps and 
applications.  Sidwell’s ArcGIS Enterprise services bundle includes:  
  

• Consultation and project planning  
• Installation and configuration  

o ArcGIS Server (includes ArcGIS Server Manager)  
o ArcGIS Web Adaptor  
o Portal for ArcGIS 
o ArcGIS Data Store 
o Organization management  

• Training for administrators and end users (if applicable) 
  
The first step begins with consultation and project planning in which the ArcGIS 
Enterprise deployment type (may require multiple servers) and security type will be 
determined. Once completed, the necessary software components will be installed and 
configured to work together as an ArcGIS Enterprise. Following the installation and 
configuration, the organization management will be configured. This configuration 
includes named users, roles, licensing, permissions and registering geodatabases.  If 



 
                                                                   
   

 
7 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

deemed necessary, the final step is when training will commence for administrators and 
end users (publishing and consuming data) for ArcGIS Enterprise.   
 
2.3 Implementation & Training 
Sidwell will be onsite for four (4) days at the Agency’s office to support the following: 
 
2.3.1 Installation and Delivery 
Sidwell will perform onsite delivery of the final configured parcel fabric database at 
predetermined locations within the Agency.  Sidwell will require access to all database 
management systems, workstations, and servers necessary to full implement the project. 
This task will be performed over the course of one-half business day. 
 
Sidwell will provide Agency staff with all documentation and training materials necessary 
to maintain the new geodatabase and parcel fabric successfully. Sidwell will provide 
remote resources to implement the new project geodatabase on the Agency’s ArcGIS 
system. Sidwell will also assist in installing, configuring, and testing mapping 
workstations. 
 
A Sidwell Project Manager or Analyst will perform the following services at the Agency:  
 

• Assistance in loading parcel fabric geodatabase into their ArcGIS environment 
• Assistance in configuring parcel fabric geodatabase in production for versioning, 

privileges and other ArcGIS related settings  
• Loading of project files onto accessible directories with consulting from Agency  
• End-to-end testing of accessing, editing, and map production workflows in production 

project geodatabase  
• Sidwell will utilize Agency-specific data for all training and workflow development, and 

all training and workflows will be designed specifically for the Agency’s environment.  
• Assistance in configuring project geodatabase in production for versioning, privileges, 

other ArcGIS related settings  
• Assistance in feature service publication, configuration, testing, creating versions, etc.  

 
2.3.2 Basic ArcGIS Pro Training 
Sidwell will provide one (1) days of basic ArcGIS Pro Training. At the outset of training, 
it is expected that users will be new to ArcGIS Pro. Time will be allocated simply to direct 
users to the most important aspects of ArcGIS Pro to provide a foundation for maintaining 
data moving forward.  
 



 
                                                                   
   

 
8 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

• Joining and adjusting to parcel fabric 
• Copying and pasting constructions into the 

parcel fabric 
• Placing bearing and dimension annotations 

using fabric tools 
• Publishing the parcel fabric to the Agency’s 

ArcGIS environment 

• Understanding the parcel fabric components 
• Querying the parcel fabric (e.g. history) 
• Splitting and merging parcels (simple) 
• Making boundary line adjustments 
• Creating condominiums 
• Entering plats/subdivisions - COGO 

This content provided in this training will be both new and a continuation of material 
previously delivered remotely as part of the pilot township delivery in section 2.2.4.3.  It 
will include, but will not be limited to the following:   
 

• Opening and closing ArcGIS Pro Projects 
• Accessing maps, layouts, database connections, etc. 
• Adding and removing data 
• Navigating Maps (zoom, pan, etc.) 
• Simple editing 
• Changing labeling and symbology properties 

 

2.3.3 Advanced Parcel Editing in ArcGIS Pro Training  
Three (3) days of additional training will be provided by Sidwell for Agency staff on editing 
and managing the parcel fabric in ArcGIS Pro.  In this course, individuals responsible for 
mapping in the parcel fabric will be introduced to the fabric editing tools provided in 
ArcGIS Pro. Users will perform fully documented hands-on exercises and Agency 
examples that address the following functions: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  



 
                                                                   
   

 
9 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

2.4 Parcel Fabric Workflow Support 
Sidwell will provide front-line support for tools, workflows and best practices for users 
working in the parcel fabric data model. This support package, which is renewable on an 
annual basis, allows customers to be able to call Sidwell’s Help Desk to address issues 
directly related to: 
 

• Best-practices technical and workflow support for Esri Parcel Fabric tools 
• Step-by-step support with parcel mapping workflows, including: 

o Parcel Editor suite of tools 
o Parcel workflows introduced by Sidwell 
o Joining/unjoining parcels and sketches 
o Plans 
o Examining attributes 

• Support with data specific map document design, including: 
o Layer symbology schemes 
o Field aliasing 
o Complex labeling 

• Support with existing Fabric adjustment workflows, including: 
o Transforming parcels 
o Parcel fabric adjustment 

• Help with mapping and display strategies for optimized visualization of data 
• Routines and scripts to publish parcel fabric data to the desktop and/or web 
• Help with understanding the structure of your data, reviewing attributes for quality control, 

and other map analysis such as working with historical parcel data 
• Troubleshooting potential problems in workflows introduced by Sidwell 
• Future planning questions about software patches/upgrades or how map changes may 

affect other systems (such as publishing to ArcGIS Online or exporting to end users) 
 
  



 
                                                                   
   

 
10 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

3. Project Costs 
The Agency will pay for the work and services provided by Sidwell below.   

GIS Professional Services  Costs 
Parcel Fabric Migration (Pilot Township) 

• Migration and construction of ArcGIS Pro parcel fabric model dataset for 
Arlington township 

• Remote services include:  
o Delivery of Arlington township parcel fabric 
o Parcel editing training (tailored to editing in pilot township) 

• Installation and configuration Sidwell’s Parcel Administrator application 
for ArcGIS Pro 

$2,640.00 

Parcel Fabric Migration 
• Migration and construction of remainder of countywide parcel data into 

ArcGIS Pro parcel fabric model 
• Optimization of parcel fabric for ArcGIS Pro 
• Initial topology cleanup 
• Conflation and curve/line processing 
• Reprocessing of remaining coincident boundary model (CBM) line types 
• Staging, fabric topology validation and loading of parcels, sections and 

subdivisions (including plan creation/assignment) 
• Delivery of final parcel fabric geodatabase 

$21,720.00 

ArcGIS Portal  
• Installation and deployment of ArcGIS Poral  
• Configuration of parcel fabric within the environment  

$3,300.00 

Implementation & Training 
• Onsite training services:  

o ArcGIS Pro basic training, one (1) day 
o ArcGIS Pro advanced parcel editing training, three (3) days 

$8,785.00 

Parcel Fabric Workflow Support  $2,800.00 

Sidwell Professional Services Total $39,245.00 
 
Project Assumptions and Notes: 

• All services will be performed remotely unless specifically noted.  
• The Client will be responsible for downloading and configuring ArcGIS Pro software on 

all necessary machines. 
• Procurement of all necessary Esri licenses will be the responsibility of the Client. 
• Training travel expenses are estimated to be $1,650.00 and will be invoiced separately.  

Travel expenses beyond the estimated amount are subject to prior approval of the 
Agency.  

• In the event the Client identifies other specific GIS project needs, Sidwell also can 
provide a fixed fee project estimate. 



 
                                                                   
   

 
11 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

4. Additional Provisions 
4.1 Commencement of Work 
Sidwell will commence the work under this Contract immediately upon its execution by 
the Agency and will continue working diligently thereafter until all work, services, and 
materials covered by this Contract have been completed. All training/support service 
hours included in the scope of work in this Contract must be completed by the conclusion 
of the base project services or within one (1) year following the commencement of such 
training/support services, whichever is later in time. Any hours unused at the conclusion 
of this period through no fault on the part of Sidwell will expire and no longer be available 
for the Agency.  
 
4.2 Contract Term 
This Contract shall be in force from the date of execution and may be revised periodically 
subject to renegotiation concerning the services provided and the amount of the service 
fee. 
 
4.3 Termination of Contract 
This Contract may be terminated by the Agency, by giving written notice to Sidwell thirty 
(30) days prior to the monthly billing date. This Contract may be terminated by Sidwell 
by giving written notice to the Agency, thirty (30) days prior to the monthly billing date.  
Upon termination of this Contract, Sidwell shall furnish the Agency with all data supplied 
by the Agency, the GIS cadastral and any other materials that were supplied by the 
Agency. Sidwell also agrees to remove from its systems and shall not retain any data 
which is, and shall remain, the sole property of the Agency. In the event of termination, 
Sidwell will be paid the earned value of the work performed prior to the date of 
termination, plus any costs associated with completing authorized work and delivering 
materials and data to the Agency. 
 
4.4 Additional Services 
Any professional services, implementations, or software modifications that are not 
included in the scope of work in this Contract but that are requested by the Agency and 
agreed upon by Sidwell shall be provided at Sidwell’s prevailing hourly rate: GIS 
Administration $175/hour, Professional/Technical $160/hour, GIS Production $130/hour, 
Travel Time $175/hour. 
 
4.5 Service Fees 
The Agency will pay Sidwell a fee of thirty-nine thousand two hundred forty-five and 
no/100 dollars ($39,245.00) as described in Section 3 as full compensation for all Sidwell 



 
                                                                   
   

 
12 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

work, services and materials described and provided under this Contract as described 
in section 2.  All costs related to training will be invoiced separately.   
 
4.6 Travel Fees 
Travel to the Agency will occur at the request of the Agency and agreed upon by Sidwell. 
If applicable, Sidwell will bill the Agency at the travel time hourly rate set forth in section 
4.4. Sidwell will invoice all travel expenses separately as they are incurred.  For the 
purposes of this Contract, when referencing travel expenses, “expenses” are defined as: 
personal mileage per trip, airfare, rental car, parking, hotel and per diem costs that are 
accumulated based on the number of days on-site. When referencing travel hours, 
“hours” are defined as: the travel hours amount for each Sidwell employee based on the 
number of trips taken to be on-site. 
 
4.7 Invoicing Schedule 
The Agency agrees to pay Sidwell total Professional Services Fees detailed in Project 
Costs, which is not inclusive of any applicable taxes.  The agreement will be processed 
with the return of signed contract and an initial payment of 20% of the total amount as 
outlined in section 4.5. Training and/or support will be invoiced in full upon 
commencement of such services. Software Applications shall be invoiced after delivery 
to Agency and upon receipt. For all other services, Sidwell will submit monthly invoices 
for the percentage of work completed.  All payments for services are non-refundable. 
 
In the event the Agency fails to pay all or any portion of an invoice on or before ninety 
(90) days after the date it becomes due, in addition to all other remedies Sidwell has 
under this Contract or otherwise, Sidwell shall have the option to suspend or terminate 
all services under this Contract. Suspension or termination of any such services shall not 
relieve the Agency of its obligation to pay its outstanding invoices, including any late 
charges. 
 
For proposed changes to the services defined by this Contract that do not materially 
impact the scope of either party's work effort required under this Contract, the parties will 
cooperate in good faith to execute Change Orders in respect thereof and will not 
unreasonably withhold approval of such proposed changes. If either party causes or 
requests a change that, in the reasonable opinion of the other party, materially impacts 
the scope of the parties' work effort required under this Contract, such as, but not limited 
to, changes in the allocation of the resources of the Agency and of Sidwell applied to a 
task, changes in completion schedules for individual tasks or for overall implementation, 
and changes in staffing that require a party to provide additional work hours, the other 
party may propose a change to cover the additional work effort required of it. Approval 
of any such proposed changes will not be unreasonably withheld (it being acknowledged 



 
                                                                   
   

 
13 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

that any such material changes may require modifications to the consideration paid, 
timelines governing, and the services), and any disputes regarding changes shall be 
handled initially by discussions between the parties which will be convened in good faith 
by the parties to resolve any such matters in dispute. 
 
4.8 Payments 
The Agency will pay Sidwell the full amount of each submitted invoice within thirty (30) 
days of receipt thereof. 
 
4.9 Change of Geodatabase Format 
Should the geodatabase be altered from its original format, Sidwell reserves the right to 
re-evaluate and, if necessary, request an adjustment to the fees.  
 
4.10 Data Ownership 
It is understood that all GIS, tabular, and digital orthophoto data provided to Sidwell by 
the Agency is the exclusive property of the Agency. It is also understood that Sidwell is 
prohibited from using said data for any purpose other than to fulfill the terms of this 
Contract without the expressed written consent of the Agency. Furthermore, all rights 
and ownership of data and solutions provided to the Agency as a part of this Contract 
are hereby the exclusive property of the Agency. 
 
4.11 Indemnification 
Sidwell will defend at its expense and hold Agency harmless from and against any third-
party action brought against Agency (A) for Sidwell’s actions that result in death, personal 
injury, or property damage; (B) that are a result of Sidwell’s gross negligence or willful 
misconduct; or (C) to the extent it is based on a claim that the professional services, 
when used in accordance with this Contract, infringes a United States copyright, patent 
or trademark, and, at its option, will settle any such action or will pay any final judgment 
awarded therein, provided that (i) Sidwell shall be notified promptly in writing by Agency 
of any notice of any such claim; (ii) Sidwell shall have the sole control of the defense of 
any such action and all negotiations for settlement or compromise; and (iii) Agency shall 
cooperate fully with Sidwell in the defense, settlement or compromise of such claim.  If 
the Software is, or in Sidwell’s opinion might be, subject to a claim of infringement as set 
forth above, Sidwell may, at its option and expense, (i) procure for Agency the right to 
continue using the Software (ii) modify the Software so that it becomes non-infringing or 
(iii) terminate the licenses granted hereunder, accept return of the Software , and grant 
Agency a refund of the applicable License Fees paid therefore with respect to the 
infringing software, based on a straight-line five year amortization schedule from the 
Effective Date. Sidwell has no liability to Agency under this section to the extent that any 
infringement, or any claim thereof, is based upon (i) use of the Software in combination 



 
                                                                   
   

 
14 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

with equipment or software not supplied or approved by Sidwell hereunder where the 
Software themselves would be non-infringing, (ii) use of the Software in an application 
or environment for which it was not designed or contemplated under this Agreement, (iii) 
use of any Software other than the most recent release of the Software provided to 
Agency by Sidwell, or (iv) Modifications of the Software by anyone other than Sidwell. 
This indemnification shall be the Agency’s sole and exclusive remedy. 
 
4.12 Limits of Liability 
Except for its indemnification obligations listed in Section 4.11, Sidwell, its affiliates, 
suppliers, licensors and each of their respective directors, officers, employees and 
shareholders’ entire liability and Agency’s exclusive remedy with respect to the 
professional services and any other products, materials or services supplied by 
contractor in connection with this Contract for damages for any cause and regardless of 
the cause of action, whether in contract or in tort, including fundamental breach, 
negligence, strict liability or otherwise, shall be for direct damages and not exceed an 
amount that is three times the professional service fees paid to Sidwell by the Agency 
for the twelve (12) months preceding the date of the action that gave rise to the claim. 
 
4.13 Warranty 
Sidwell guarantees the contracted services for the period of four (4) months from final 
delivery of the accepted geodatabase to correct any issues found within the final 
deliverable that were a clear and obvious oversight on the part of Sidwell.  All issues 
must be brought to the attention of the Sidwell project manager in writing.  The Sidwell 
project manager will compare the original Agency database and the final delivered 
database to the Agency to verify the issue.  Once verified, these items will be rectified 
by Sidwell staff at no additional cost to the Agency.  If the items presented to the Agency 
cannot be verified by Sidwell a change order may be required to address the item(s). 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
                                                                   
   

 
15 

 

Woodbury County, IA  
Parcel Fabric Migration Services  

 
5. Authorization 

 
 
This Contract is effective this ______________ day of ________________________________, 2023.  
 
 
 

The Sidwell Company 
 
 
 
By ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name 
 
 

Woodbury County, IA 
 
 
 
By__________________________________ 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name 
 

 
 
 







WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

05/10/2023 05/16/2023

Melissa Thomas and Scott Mitchell 

✔

✔

Approval to increase Emergency Service's holiday pay  

EMS would like to increase the holiday worked compensation to double pay for the entire 24 hours of the holiday and also pay employees for 12 hours of  
holiday pay instead of the current 8 hours.  
 

After studying other EMS organizations, we believe by increasing the holiday pay for actual hours worked and 
increasing the benefit hours, our retention and recruitment of employees may benefit. 

The holiday worked compensation would have an approximate impact of $7005.00 and the holiday benefit pay 
would have an approximate increase of $4575.00 equaling $11580.00. $1700 of this amount would be for this 
coming Memorial Day holiday. 

Pass the motion.

Motion to approve increasing EMS holidays worked pay to double for 24 hours and holiday benefit pay to 12
hours.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

05/10/2023 05/16/2023

Melissa Thomas HR Director

✔

✔

✔

Approve the purchase of the Cyber Liability Insurance policy for FY 23/24

The proposed cyber liability policy provides $3,000,000 in coverage with a $30,000 deductible. (attached) 

Cyber liability insurance is an annual renewal. It provides coverage for losses related to security incidents, such as malware, 
ransomware and phishing attacks. This includes the cost of hiring security experts to help with the recovery of data and provides 
legal assistance if there is an incident.  

$35,775, no change from last fiscal year. 

Approve the motion 

Motion to approve the purchase of Cyber Liability Insurance for FY 23/24.



LTR-4000 Rev. 07-16 
© 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company.  All rights reserved.

Page 1 of 5

Brad T Miller
PO Box 64094                            
St. Paul, MN 55102-0094
Phone: (515) 221-3608
Email: BTMILLE2@travelers.com

May 2, 2023

HEATHER MURAD
AJG RISK MGMT SERVS LLC 
PO BOX 718                    
SIOUX CITY, IA 51102-0718

RE: Insured Name: WOODBURY COUNTY
620 DOUGLAS ST RM 701
SIOUX CITY, IA 51101-1254

              Expiring Policy Number: 107659163
 Policy Period: June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024

Dear HEATHER MURAD:

On behalf of Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America we are pleased to provide the attached proposal of insurance for 
your review. 

The quotes contained in this document are valid until the expiration of your current policy, and are subject to the provision of, and 
Travelers' review and acceptance of, the required underwriting information noted in the Contingencies section.  Travelers reserves the 
right to change the quotes in this document, or to refuse to bind coverage entirely, based on review of the required underwriting 
information or based on adverse change in the risk(s) to be insured prior to the quote expiration date noted in this document. 

Please note that we require a response to this document prior to expiration of the Insured's current policy in order to facilitate policy 
renewal.  The insured's current policy will expire and not be renewed in the absence of a request, and Travelers' agreement, to bind 
coverage.

Travelers is pleased to offer Risk Management PLUS+ Online®, the industry's most comprehensive program for mitigating your 
management liability exposures, which is available to you at no additional cost.  Please visit www.rmplusonline.com to view the 
services that are available.  If you have additional questions about the site please contact your Underwriter.

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, a subsidiary of The Travelers Companies, Inc., has consistently earned high
ratings for financial strength and claims-paying ability from independent rating services, including a current A.M. Best rating of A++*. 
Founded in 1853, The Travelers Companies, Inc. is a Fortune 500 company, a component of the Dow Jones Industrial Average, and a 
leading provider of property casualty insurance for businesses.

Thank you for considering Travelers for your client's insurance coverages.  We look forward to discussing this opportunity with you. 
 
Sincerely,

Brad T Miller
Travelers Bond & Specialty Insurance
*A.M. Best's rating of A++ applies to Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America as well as to certain insurance subsidiaries of Travelers that
are members of the Travelers Insurance Companies pool; other subsidiaries are included in another rating pool or are separately rated. For a listing of
companies rated by A.M. Best and other rating services visit www.travelers.com. Ratings listed herein are as of July 2022, are used with permission, 
and are subject to changes by the rating services. For the latest rating, access www.ambest.com.

http://www.travelers.com
http://www.ambest.com


LTR-4000 Rev. 07-16 
© 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company.  All rights reserved.

Page 2 of 5

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
QUOTE OPTION #1

 CYBER COVERAGE:

Liability Limit Retention

Privacy and Security $3,000,000 $30,000

Payment Card Costs $3,000,000 Subject to Privacy and Security Retention

Media Not Covered

Regulatory Proceedings $3,000,000 $30,000

Breach Response Limit Retention

Privacy Breach Notification $3,000,000 $30,000

Computer and Legal Experts $3,000,000 $30,000

Betterment $100,000

Cyber Extortion $3,000,000 $30,000

Data Restoration $3,000,000 $30,000

Public Relations $3,000,000 $30,000

Cyber Crime Limit Retention

Computer Fraud $100,000 $10,000

Funds Transfer Fraud $100,000 $10,000

Social Engineering Fraud $100,000 $10,000

Telecom Fraud $100,000 $5,000

Business Loss Limit Retention

Business Interruption $1,000,000

Dependent Business Interruption $1,000,000

Dependent Business Interruption - System  
Failure $1,000,000

Dependent Business Interruption - Outsource 
Provider $1,000,000

Dependent Business Interruption - Outsource 
Provider - System Failure $1,000,000

Reputation Harm $250,000 $10,000

System Failure $1,000,000

Additional First Party Provisions

Accounting Costs Limit: $25,000

Betterment Coparticipation: 50%

Period Of Restoration: 180 days

Period Of Indemnity: 30 days

Wait Period: 12 hours



LTR-4000 Rev. 07-16 
© 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company.  All rights reserved.

Page 3 of 5

Knowledge Date: June 30, 2022

P&P Date: June 30, 2022

Retro Date: N/A

TOTAL ANNUAL PREMIUM - $35,775.00
(Other term options listed below, if available)

LIMIT DETAIL:

Shared  Additional Defense Limit of Liability: N/A

CyberRisk Policy Aggregate Limit: $3,000,000

EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD AND RUN-OFF:

Extended Reporting Period for Cyber Coverage:

                                            Additional Premium Percentage: 75%
                                            Additional Months: 12

Run-Off Extended Reporting Period for Cyber Coverage:

                                            Additional Premium Percentage: N/A
                                            Additional Months: N/A

CLAIM DEFENSE FOR ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE, LIABILITY COVERAGES AND/OR CYBER 
COVERAGE: 
Duty to Defend

PREMIUM DETAIL:

Term Payment 
   Type 

Premium Taxes Surcharges Total 
Premium

Total Term 
 Premium 

1 Year Prepaid $35,775.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,775.00 $35,775.00
            

        
POLICY FORMS APPLICABLE TO QUOTE OPTION # 1: 
AFE-15001-0620 Declarations
AFE-16001-0119 General Conditions
CYB-15001-0620 CyberRisk Declarations 
CYB-16001-0620 CyberRisk Coverage
CYB-16001-TOC-0620 CyberRisk Table of Contents

ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO QUOTE OPTION # 1: 

AFE-19013-0119 State Inconsistency Endorsement
AFE-19029-0719 Cap On Losses From Certified Acts Of Terrorism Endorsement
AFE-19030-0920 Federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act Disclosure Endorsement
CYB-19102-0620 Dependent Business Interruption - System Failure Endorsement
CYB-19104-0620 Dependent Business Interruption - Outsource Provider Endorsement
CYB-19105-0119 Conviction Reward Endorsement
CYB-19122-0519 Vendor Or Client Payment Fraud Endorsement 
CYB-19123-0519 Bricked Equipment Endorsement 
CYB-19166-1020 Preservation Of Governmental Immunity - Iowa Endorsement



LTR-4000 Rev. 07-16 
© 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company.  All rights reserved.

Page 4 of 5

CONTINGENCIES APPLICABLE TO QUOTE OPTION # 1: 

This quote is contingent on the acceptable underwriting review of the following information prior to the quote expiration date.

None

    COMMISSION:     17.50%

    QUOTE NOTES: 

   
NOTICES:  

It is the agent's or broker's responsibility to comply with any applicable laws regarding disclosure to the policyholder of 
commission or other compensation we pay, if any, in connection with this policy or program. 
   
Important Notice Regarding Compensation Disclosure 
For information about how Travelers compensates independent agents, brokers, or other insurance producers, please visit this 
website:  http://www.travelers.com/w3c/legal/Producer_Compensation_Disclosure.html  
   
If you prefer, you can call the following toll-free number: 1-866-904-8348. Or you can write to us at Travelers, Agency Compensation, 
P.O. Box 2950, Hartford, CT 06104-2950.

FEDERAL TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT DISCLOSURE 

The federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 as amended (“TRIA”), establishes a program under which the Federal 
Government may partially reimburse “Insured Losses” (as defined in TRIA) caused by “Acts Of Terrorism” (as defined in TRIA). Act 
Of Terrorism is defined in Section 102(1) of TRIA to mean any act that is certified by the Secretary of the Treasury  - in consultation 
with the Secretary of Homeland Security and the Attorney General of the United States  - to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act 
or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have resulted in damage within the United States, or outside 
the United States in the case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United States Mission; and to have been 
committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population of the United States or to influence the 
policy or affect the conduct of the United States Government by coercion. 

The Federal Government's share of compensation for such Insured Losses is 80% of the amount of such Insured Losses in excess 
of each Insurer's “Insurer Deductible” (as defined in TRIA), subject to the “Program Trigger” (as defined in TRIA).  

In no event, however, will the Federal Government be required to pay any portion of the amount of such Insured Losses occurring in 
a calendar year that in the aggregate exceeds $100 billion, nor will any Insurer be required to pay any portion of such amount 
provided that such Insurer has met its Insurer Deductible. Therefore, if such Insured Losses occurring in a calendar year exceed 
$100 billion in the aggregate, the amount of any payments by the Federal Government and any coverage provided by this policy for 
losses caused by Acts Of Terrorism may be reduced. 

For each coverage provided by this policy that applies to such Insured Losses, the charge for such Insured Losses is no more than 
one percent of your premium, and does not include any charge for the portion of such Insured Losses covered by the Federal 
Government under TRIA. Please note that no separate additional premium charge has been made for coverage for Insured Losses 
covered by TRIA. The premium charge that is allocable to such coverage is inseparable from and imbedded in your overall premium. 

Coverage Disclaimer: 
THIS QUOTE DOES NOT AMEND, OR OTHERWISE AFFECT, THE PROVISIONS OR COVERAGE OF ANY 
RESULTING INSURANCE POLICY ISSUED BY TRAVELERS. IT IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT COVERAGE 
DOES OR DOES NOT EXIST FOR ANY PARTICULAR CLAIM OR LOSS UNDER ANY SUCH POLICY. 
COVERAGE DEPENDS ON THE APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE ACTUAL POLICY ISSUED, THE FACTS 
AND CIRCUMSTANCES INVOLVED IN THE CLAIM OR LOSS AND ANY APPLICABLE LAW.  

THE PRECEDING OUTLINES THE COVERAGE FORMS, LIMITS OF INSURANCE, POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 
AND OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS PROVIDED IN THIS QUOTE. ANY POLICY COVERAGES, LIMITS OF 



LTR-4000 Rev. 07-16 
© 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company.  All rights reserved.

Page 5 of 5

INSURANCE, POLICY ENDORSEMENTS, COVERAGE SPECIFICATIONS, OR OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
THAT YOU HAVE REQUESTED THAT ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS QUOTE HAVE NOT BEEN AGREED TO BY 
TRAVELERS. PLEASE REVIEW THIS QUOTE CAREFULLY AND IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, PLEASE 
CONTACT YOUR TRAVELERS REPRESENTATIVE.

Affiliate (non-Subsidiary) Coverage Disclaimer:  

Regardless of the submission of information or typical availability of coverage for any entity that is not a Subsidiary of 
the Named Insured, such entity is not covered by the Policy unless an endorsement is provided that specifically 
schedules it.  Under the Wrap+® policy, coverage is generally afforded to the following entities (unless otherwise 
excluded): (1) the Named Insured and (2) its majority-owned Subsidiaries.  A Subsidiary is defined in each coverage 
part of the Wrap+® policy and the definition can vary between coverage parts.  An affiliate is not defined but generally 
has some ownership and/or management in common with the Named Insured or its Subsidiaries (but itself is not a 
Subsidiary of either one).  Affiliate coverage will not be considered on a blanket basis nor will an individual entity be 
scheduled without proper underwriting information (please contact your underwriter to discuss specific requirements). 
For an actual description of coverages, terms and conditions, refer to the Policy.  Sample policies can be found on the 
travelers.com website or contact your underwriter.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:  ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐   Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐  Other:  Informational  ☐   Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:  

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

05/10/23 05/16/23

Melissa Thomas, HR Director 

✔

✔

✔

Approve Updated Security Awareness Resolution, New Security Awareness Policy and the Updated 
Acceptable Use - Technology Policy

WCICC-IT requests approval of the updated Security Awareness resolution and the new Security Awareness policy for Woodbury County 
employees using the WCICC-IT network. As well as approval of the updated Acceptable Use – Technology policy for all Woodbury County 
employees.

The purpose of updating the resolution and the creation of these policies is to stay up to date with changing 
technologies and address security concerns our organization may face.

No financial impact.

WCICC-IT requests approval of the updated Security Awareness resolution and the new Security Awareness 
policy for Woodbury County employees using the WCICC-IT network. As well as approval of the updated 
Acceptable Use – Technology policy for all Woodbury County employees.

Motion to approve the updated Security Awareness resolution, the new Security Awareness policy for 
Woodbury County employees using the WCICC-IT network and the updated Acceptable Use - Technology 
policy for all Woodbury County employees. 



RESOLUTION NO _____________

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE AND IMPLEMENT SECURITY AWARENESS TRAINING FOR WOODBURY COUNTY 

 EMPLOYEES USING THE WCICC-IT NETWORK 

WHEREAS, cyber-attacks and ransom-ware threats can lead to a compromised workstation or 
spread malware through the County's internal network which could potentially cripple or shutdown our 
entire network and 

WHEREAS, WCICC-IT is responsible for the network which serves the County and desires to 
educate its users on tools and methods used in Cyberthreats and test them for social engineering 
vulnerabilities related to cyber-attacks and 

WHEREAS, WCICC-IT desires to employ additional training and restrictions for repeatedly failing 

simulated cyber-attacks, 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors, Woodbury County, Iowa, hereby  

declare that users will only be granted to appropriate network resources based on need and successful 

training and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Woodbury County Supervisors declare that all new county 
employees needing access to the County's network must complete basic computer security awareness 
training administered by WCICC-IT before they are granted network access and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Woodbury County Supervisors declare that all currently 

employed county employees are to complete basic computer security awareness training administered by 

WCICC-IT within fourteen days of notification by WCICC-IT and the Woodbury County Human Resources 

Department and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Woodbury County Supervisors declare that WCICC-IT is 

authorized to measure employee's security awareness through the use such tools as phishing campaigns 

and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Woodbury County Supervisors declare that WCICC-IT is 

authorized to require additional training and restrict access to network resources for county employees 

that repeatedly expose the county network to cyber-attacks that are identified as real or simulated 

phishing emails. 

SO RESOLVED this 9th day of May, 2023 and supersedes resolution #12,323 of May 10th, 2016. 

Board Chair: 

Attestation:  



 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

SECURITY AWARENESS POLICY 
 

Last Update Status: Updated May 2023 

PURPOSE 
Cyberattacks and ransomware threats take advantage of common Internet traffic, such as 
email, which can bypass perimeter security in attempt to compromise networks by exploiting 
weaknesses in human nature. The purpose of this Administrative Policy (AP): 

• Define Security Awareness Training (SAT) for a network client. 

• Outline tools used by WCICC-IT to regularly test the network client with simulated 
cyberattacks. 

• Define disciplinary actions for failing simulated and legitimate cyberattacks. 

SCOPE 
This policy applies to all network clients operating on the behalf of the City of Sioux City.  

RESPONSIBILITY 
• WCICC-IT is responsible for providing education and testing for vulnerabilities related to 

Cyberattacks for all network clients. 

• The Human Resources Department, along with the network client’s immediate supervisor, 
are responsible for notifying WCICC-IT of all new network clients’ need for network access 
and for promptly notifying WCICC-IT of all terminated network clients. 

• The Human Resources Department, along with the network client’s immediate supervisor, 
are responsible for ensuring the initial and annual training are completed within 14 
calendar days. 

DEFINITIONS 
Cyberattacks – An attempt to gain access to a computer or computer systems for the purpose of 
causing harm to the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the network system. 
Incident – Clicking a link, opening an attachment, entering credentials, or some other action on a 
simulated or a legitimate phishing email is also considered an incident. 
Network – a system containing any combination of computers, printers, audio, or visual display devices 
and/or telephones interconnected by telecommunication equipment or cables used to transmit or 
receive information. 
Network Client – Any individual that makes a direct or wireless connection to the WCICC-IT network 
infrastructure using an electronic device. 
Phishing – The act of sending email that falsely claims to be from a legitimate organization, with the 
goal of tricking the person into providing information that can be used against the organization. 
Ransomware - A type of malicious software designed to block access to a computer system until a 
sum of money is paid. 



Security Awareness – The knowledge and attitude of members of an organization possess regarding 
the protection of the physical and informational assets of that organization.  
Woodbury County Information and Communication Commission Information Technology 
(WCICC-IT) – As defined by the 28E Agreement between the City of Sioux City and Woodbury County 
for 911 communications and information systems. 
Woodbury County Agents (WCA) – Any person operating on behalf of Woodbury County, including 
but not limited to employees, volunteers, contractors, and elected officials.  

POLICY/PROCEDURE 
• All network clients must complete the initial SAT before they are granted network access. 

• Annually, SAT must be completed within 14 calendar days upon notification to maintain 
network access. 

• WCICC-IT is authorized to periodically measure the network client’s security awareness using 
simulated phishing campaigns and/or security trainings. 

• If interaction such as clicking a link or opening an attachment is taken during the simulated 
test, it is considered an incident and will be met with the tiered incident response. 

• In the case of a legitimate phishing attack, it will be considered an incident if there is an action 
taken that could cause harm to the network system 

 
- First Incident: The network client is notified. The network client must complete the 

refresher training within 7 calendar days of the notice and notify WCICC-IT upon 
completion. 

- Second and Third Incident: The network client and their immediate supervisor are 
notified. The network client must take remedial security awareness training within 5 
calendar days of the notice and notify WCICC-IT upon completion. 

- Fourth Incident: The network client, their supervisor, and the Director of Human 
Resources or designee are notified, and the network access is temporarily disabled until 
the network client re-completes the initial security awareness training. The network client 
must coordinate with the Director of Human Resources or designee to complete the 
training and notify WCICC-IT upon completion. 

- Fifth and Subsequent Incidents: The network client’s Director and Director of Human 
Resources or designee are notified, and network access is disabled pending further 
disciplinary action as defined by Human Resources. 

 
All Incidents are calculated on a 12-month revolving cycle. Failure to complete any of the 
mandatory training within the allotted time will result in network access being disabled. 
Arrangements to regain access need to be coordinated with Human Resources and WCICC-IT. 

 

 



WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

Acceptable Use – Technology Policy 

Last Update Status: May 2023 

PURPOSE 
This policy outlines the acceptable use of computer equipment and electronic communication. 
These rules help protect the County’s employees and data from serious risks, including virus 
attacks, compromise of network systems and services, public relations issues, and legal 
issues.  

The goal of publishing an Acceptable Use Policy is to protect the County’s employees, 
partners, and data against damaging actions committed either unintentionally or intentionally. 

Internet/Intranet/Extranet-related systems, including, but not limited to, computer equipment, 
software, operating systems, storage media, network accounts, electronic mail, and WWW 
browsing, are the property of Woodbury County.  

It is a team effort to maintain an effective security program. All employees and affiliates 
working with information or information systems must participate in safe security behaviors 
daily. Users are responsible for understanding these guidelines and conducting business 
accordingly. Additional training will be provided upon request to aid that understanding. Any 
lack of specifics within this policy does not imply a lack of employee responsibility, should 
specific actions necessitate managerial review or redress. 

SCOPE 
This policy applies to the use of information, electronic and computing devices, and network 
resources used to conduct Woodbury County business or interact with internal networks and 
business systems, whether owned or leased by Woodbury County, the employee or a third 
party. All employees, contractors, consultants, temporary workers, and other workers at 
Woodbury County and its subsidiaries are responsible for exercising good judgment regarding 
the appropriate use of information, electronic devices, and network resources under 
Woodbury County policies and standards and local laws and regulations. This policy applies 
to all employees, elected officials, contractors, consultants, temporary workers, and other 
workers at Woodbury County, including all personnel affiliated with third parties. This policy 
applies to all equipment owned or leased by Woodbury County. 



RESPONSIBILITY 
 

It is the responsibility of all County employees to be familiar and maintain compliancy with this 
policy.  Department Directors and Elected Officials will work with supervisors to ensure 
employees are informed of this policy. The County reserves the right to monitor electronic 
communication without prior notification to employees. Woodbury County will verify 
compliance with this policy through various methods, including but not limited to business tool 
reports, internal and external audits, and feedback to the policy owner.  

DEFINITIONS 
Principle of least access - every module (such as a process, a user, or a program, depending 
on the subject) must be able to access only the information and resources that are necessary 
for its legitimate purpose. 

POLICY/PROCEDURE 
General Use and Ownership  

- Proprietary information stored on electronic and computing devices remains the sole 
property of Woodbury County, whether owned or leased by Woodbury County, the 
employee, or a third party. 

- Employees are responsible for promptly reporting the theft, loss, or unauthorized disclosure 
of the County’s proprietary information. 

- Employees may access, use, or share Woodbury County proprietary information only to the 
extent it is authorized and necessary to fulfill your assigned job duties. 

- Employees are responsible for exercising good judgment regarding the reasonableness of 
personal use. Individual departments are responsible for creating guidelines concerning 
personal use of Internet/Intranet/Extranet systems. In the absence of such policies, 
employees should follow departmental policies for personal use, and if there is any 
uncertainty, employees should consult their supervisor or manager.  

- For security and network maintenance purposes, authorized individuals within Woodbury 
County may monitor equipment, systems, and network traffic at any time. 

- Woodbury County reserves the right to audit networks and systems periodically to ensure 
compliance with this policy.  

Security and Proprietary Information 

- All mobile and computing devices that connect to the internal network must comply with the 
principle of least access. 

- Providing access to another individual, deliberately or through failure to secure access, is 
prohibited. 

- You must lock the screen or log off when the device is unattended.  



- Postings by employees from a County email address should contain a disclaimer stating that 
the opinions expressed are strictly their own and not necessarily those of Woodbury County 
unless posting is during business duties. Employees should only use Woodbury County 
accounts for work-related services and platforms. 

- Employees must use extreme caution when opening email attachments from unknown 
senders, which may contain malware. 

Unacceptable Use 

The following activities are, in general, prohibited. Employees may get an exemption from 
these restrictions during their legitimate job responsibilities (e.g., systems administration staff 
may need to disable a host's network access if that host is disrupting production services). 

Under no circumstances is an employee of Woodbury County authorized to engage in any 
illegal activity under local, state, federal, or international law while utilizing Woodbury County-
owned resources.  

The electronic communications systems may be used for minor, incidental personal uses, as 
determined by management, that is not intentional misuses. Personal use shall not directly or 
indirectly interfere with the County’s business services, interfere with job performance, directly 
or indirectly interfere with another user's duties, or burden Woodbury County with more than a 
negligible cost. 

The lists below are by no means exhaustive but attempt to provide a framework for activities 
that fall into the category of unacceptable use.  

System and Network Activities  

The following activities are strictly prohibited, with no exceptions:  

- Violations of the rights of any person or company protected by copyright, trade secret, 
patent, or other intellectual property, or similar laws or regulations. Violations include, but 
are not limited to, the installation or distribution of "pirated" or other software products that 
were not appropriately licensed for use by Woodbury County.  

- Unauthorized copying of copyrighted material, including, but not limited to, copyrighted 
music, and installing any copyrighted software for which Woodbury County or the end user 
does not have an active license is strictly prohibited.  

- Accessing data, a server, or an account for any purpose other than conducting Woodbury 
County business, even if you have authorized access, is prohibited. 

- Exporting software, technical information, encryption software, or technology in violation of 
international or regional export control laws is illegal. The appropriate management should 
get consulted before the export of any material that is in question. 

- Introducing malicious programs into the network or server (e.g., viruses, worms, Trojan 
horses, email bombs, etc.).  

- Revealing your account passwords to others or allowing the use of your accounts by others. 
This includes family and other household members when working from home.  



- Using Woodbury County computing asset to actively procure or transmit material that 
violates sexual harassment or hostile workplace laws in the user's local jurisdiction.  

- Employees make fraudulent offers of products, items, or services from any of Woodbury 
County accounts.  

- Making statements about warranty, expressly or implied, unless it is a part of regular job 
duties. 

- Effecting a security breach, including, but not limited to, accessing data of which the 
employee is not an intended recipient or logging into a server or account that the employee 
is not expressly authorized to access unless these duties are within the scope of regular 
duties. For this section, "disruption" includes, but is not limited to, network sniffing, pinged 
floods, packet spoofing, denial of service, and forged routing information for malicious 
purposes. 

- Port scanning or security scanning is prohibited unless approved and performed by the 
Information Security Team. 

- Network monitoring is prohibited unless this activity is a part of the WCICC-IT employee's 
regular job/duty or unless the activity is explicitly approved by the Network Manager. 

- Performing any circumvention of user authentication or security of any host, network, or 
account.  

- Introducing honeypots, honeynets, or similar technology on Woodbury County network.  

- Interfering with or denying service to any user other than the employee's host (for example, 
denial of service attack). 

- Using any program/script/command or sending messages of any kind with the intent to 
interfere with, or disable, a user's terminal session via any means, locally or via the 
Internet/Intranet/Extranet.  

- Providing information about, or lists of, Woodbury County employees to parties outside 
Woodbury County.  

- Damaging computer equipment intentionally, or unintentionally by using excessive force. 

Email and Communication Activities 

Users must realize they represent the organization when using organizational resources to 
access and use the Internet. Employees are responsible for the context of all communications. 
Whenever employees state an affiliation to the company, they must also clearly indicate that 
"the opinions expressed are my own and not necessarily those of the organization." 

- Sending unsolicited email messages, including sending "junk mail" or other advertising 
material to individuals who did not specifically request such material (email spam).  

- Any form of harassment via email, telephone, or paging, whether through language, 
frequency, or size of messages.  



- Transmission of any improper communication that is pornographic, derogatory, defamatory, 
or obscene.  

- Unauthorized use or forging of email header information.  

- Solicitation of email for any other email address other than that of the poster's account, with 
the intent to harass or to collect replies. 

- Work email accounts used for signing up for non-work-related accounts such as online 
shopping or social media. 

- Creating or forwarding "chain letters," "Ponzi," or other "pyramid" schemes of any type. 

- Use of unsolicited email originating from within the County’s networks of other 
Internet/Intranet/Extranet service providers on behalf of, or to advertise, any service hosted 
by Woodbury County or connected via the County’s network. 

- Access to Woodbury County resources, including organizational email, from outside the US 
will only be granted with prior approval by a direct supervisor. 

Social Media 

- Posting on social media by employees, whether using the County’s property and systems or 
personal computer systems, is also subject to the terms and restrictions outlined in this 
Policy.  

- Limited and occasional use of the County’s systems to engage in posting is acceptable, if it 
gets done professionally and responsibly, does not otherwise violate the County’s policy, is 
not detrimental to the County’s best interests and does not interfere with an employee's 
regular work duties.  

- Posting from the County’s systems is subject to monitoring. 

- Employees are prohibited from revealing Woodbury County confidential or proprietary 
information when engaged in social media. 

- Employees shall not engage in any posting on social media that may harm or tarnish the 
image, reputation, or goodwill of Woodbury County or any of its employees. Employees are 
prohibited from making discriminatory, disparaging, defamatory, or harassing comments 
when posting. 

- Employees may also not attribute personal statements, opinions, or beliefs to Woodbury 
County when engaged in social media. If an employee is expressing their beliefs or opinions 
on social media, the employee may not, expressly, or implicitly, represent themselves as an 
employee or representative of Woodbury County. Employees assume all risks associated 
with posting on social media. 

- Apart from following all laws pertaining to the handling and disclosure of copyrighted or 
export-controlled materials, the County’s trademarks, logos, and any other Woodbury 
County intellectual property may also not be used in connection with any social media 
activity. 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

5/10/2023 5/16/2023

Dennis Butler - Finance/Budget Director

✔

Approval of Letter of Support for Koskovich & Murphy Developments application for the Iowa
Workforce Housing Tax Credits

Koskovich & Murphy Developments is applying for Iowa Workforce Housing Tax Credits. In addition to the
application they are asking for Letters of Support for their project.

Plans include removing the existing Crescent Park Elementary site and erecting two buildings comprised of 24
residential units each.

None

Approval of Letter of Support for Koskovich & Murphy Developments for Iowa Workforce Housing Tax Credits

Motion by_______, second by_______ to approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Letter of Support





Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 

Timothy J. Whipple 
515.246.0379 
twhipple@ahlerslaw.com 

 

02203624-1\99520-379 

May 9, 2023 

 

Via E-Mail Only 

Matthew Ung, M.B.A., M.Th. 

Chairman Board of Supervisors  

Woodbury County  

620 Douglas St. 

Sioux City, IA 51101 

Cell: (712) 490-7852 

 

 

RE: Joint Representation of Woodbury County in Iowa Utilities Board Pipeline Permit 

Proceedings 

Concurrent (Joint) Representation and Conflict Waiver 

 

Dear Mr. Ung: 

 

This consent and waiver letter confirms that our Firm has been asked to represent 

Woodbury County, in addition to Delaware, Floyd, Emmet, Butler, and Bremer Counties, acting 

by and through their Boards of Supervisors (individually a “County” and collectively the 

"Counties") in connection with certain matters arising from the state and local regulation of 

hazardous liquid pipelines, and in particular participation in pending contested case permit 

proceedings before the Iowa Utilities Board (the “IUB”) in connection with a carbon capture 

pipeline project proposed by Navigator Heartland Greenway (“IUB Permit Proceedings”). 

 

As you know, our Firm has an existing and long-standing client relationship with all of 

the Counties. Given the proposed concurrent representation of the Counties, we cannot undertake 

a representation where we will advocate or negotiate for one party against the others.  However, 

our ethical rules allow us to undertake joint representation of all Counties in a specific matter 

provided that we can competently and diligently represent each client, and each client provides 

informed consent in writing to the representation. 

 

Joint Representation and Common Interests 

 

We believe that we can competently and diligently jointly represent the Counties in the 

limited matter of the IUB contested case permit proceedings.  In those proceedings, the legal 

issues involved are likely to impact either the zoning and home rule powers of each county 

within their jurisdiction or the zoning and home rule powers of counties generally. In the case of 

the former, there is no conflict because the jurisdiction of each county does not interfere with the 

other counties. In the case of the latter, the zoning and home rule powers of all counties are likely 

to be affected equally in which case there is a high likelihood no party will be adverse to the 

others.  



Page 2 

 

 

02203624-1\99520-379 

 

In short, as long as the Counties are in agreement on the applicable law, substantive 

policy issues, and tactical and strategic implementation of their shared goals, we believe that we 

can competently and diligently continue to represent the Counties and that representing the 

Counties in front of the IUB would not pose a conflict with our representation of them in other 

matters.  In the event there are actual disagreements of substance between the Counties on the 

applicable law, substantive policy issues, and tactical and strategic implementation of shared 

goals, we will attempt to resolve such disagreements or disputes amicably during the joint 

representation. However, if any one County or Counties remains in dispute or disagreement after 

good faith attempts at resolution, then one or more of the following may occur: 

 

(1) the County in disagreement may withdraw from the joint representation and resume 

separate participation in the proceedings; 

(2) the Firm may decline to advise any of the Counties with respect to such issue; and/or 

(3) the Firm may need to obtain informed consent or withdraw as counsel for one or 

more Counties, or from the joint representation in its entirety. Such withdrawal by the 

Firm would not generally, however, impact our ongoing representation of the 

Counties on any other matters not directly related to or arising from the IUB Permit 

Proceedings which are the focus of this limited joint representation.  

 

If the Counties desire to pursue this joint representation, the firm requires they agree to 

the following: 

 

• An acknowledgement that the Firm has been asked to represent them before the IUB in 

the IUB Permit Proceedings jointly with the other Counties; and 

 

• An acknowledgement from all Counties that the analyses, work product, and preparation 

of filings for each County on any given question, action, or issue arising during the 

proceedings is likely to be duplicative if performed separately by each individual County 

and that each County would rather pursue their goals now through a collaborative process 

than individually through preparation of their own analyses, work product, and filings, 

with the understanding and agreement that all Counties will receive the same work 

product unless they opt to make a separate filing or take some other action individually; 

and 

 

• An acknowledgement that engaging in this joint representation may prevent Ahlers & 

Cooney, P.C. from representing any one or more Counties should an adversarial dispute 

arise with the other Counties as a result of the IUB’s handling of the permit proceeding, 

provided however that the Firm may elect to continue with the representation of one or 

more Counties with informed consent or otherwise, consistent with attorney ethical rules 

on conflict of interests.  

 

In the course of the joint representation of the Counties, we will not have 

communications with one County relevant to the IUB proceedings that are confidential from the 

other Counties.  For matters relevant to this limited joint representation in the IUB proceedings, 

we have a legal and ethical duty to share with all of you the information we receive and the 

comments that we give.  In other words, your conversations with us with respect to this matter 



Page 3 

 

 

02203624-1\99520-379 

are not privileged as between the Counties and could not be claimed as privileged should any 

dispute arise between you.  If you want independent advice concerning this matter, or if you wish 

to be able to discuss matters in complete privacy, you will need to seek such advice from 

alternate counsel.   

 

In deciding whether or not to consent to the joint representation, the Counties should 

consider how our limited representation as described above could or may affect them.  For 

example, clients that are asked to consent to conflicts should consider whether there is any 

material risk that their attorney will be less diligent on their behalf due to the conflict.  Similarly, 

clients should consider whether there is any material risk that their confidential information or 

other proprietary matters will be used adversely to them due to the conflict.  We do not believe 

that our obligations of loyalty and confidentiality to any party will impair our ability to represent 

the Counties in this matter in the limited manner described herein, but of course you may ask me 

any questions you may have regarding the contents of this letter and you should seek the 

independent advice of your County Attorney or other lawyer outside of our Firm regarding the 

contents of this letter.  

 

In addition, this representation involves participation in the IUB Permit Proceedings for a 

pipeline that crosses multiple counties. There is a substantial possibility that other counties will 

also seek to participate in the same IUB Permit Proceedings, and we may also be asked to 

represent them in the Proceedings. We do not believe that such representation, if it occurs, will 

adversely affect our ability to jointly represent the Counties with respect to the permit 

proceedings because actual disagreements among the counties is unlikely. In the event that other 

counties seek our representation in the permit proceedings, we may request that the applicable 

county grant a conflict waiver and/or enter into this or another similar agreement for joint 

representation.  By entering into this joint representation, the Counties consent to the potential 

inclusion of additional counties in the joint representation without further action on their part, if 

such additional counties agree to the terms and conditions of this letter.   

 

Scope of Limited Representation 

 

If all Counties approve and consent to this joint representation as described above, then 

the additional terms of our representation are as follows: 

 

We understand the representation in this matter to include the following responsibilities: 

 

• Attend regular and special meetings of each County’s Board of Supervisors, and other 

meetings with state officials or pipeline company representatives as necessary and, in 

each instance, as may be requested by the Counties related to the IUB Permit 

Proceedings. 

• Advise the Counties on legal and regulatory matters related to state and federal pipeline 

regulations, state and federal permits, local ordinances and permits, and county home rule 

authority as and to the extent related to the IUB Permit Proceedings. 

• Represent the Counties in the IUB Permit Proceedings. 

• Review, draft, file, and, if applicable, negotiate all pleadings, motions, testimony, briefs, 

and other filings necessary and convenient as part of the IUB Permit Proceedings. 

 



Page 4 

 

 

02203624-1\99520-379 

We have discussed with you the fact that the complexity of local, state and federal 

pipeline regulations, along with the magnitude of the proposed carbon capture pipeline projects, 

lead to the possibility that the Counties’ ordinances might be challenged in court or that the IUB 

proceedings could result in further state or federal litigation resulting or arising from the IUB’s 

decisions and orders during the IUB Permit Proceedings. The scope of this representation is to 

assist with the participation in IUB Permit Proceedings as described above, which could include 

appeals or further judicial review by various parties to the Proceedings.  

 

At this time, the scope does not include defending the Counties against various legal 

claims not arising from the IUB Permit Proceedings, including administrative claims and state 

and federal litigation not related to the IUB Permit Proceedings. Representation of the Counties 

in such matters, if they arise, is subject to the specifics of such claims, a review of actual or 

potential conflicts of interest, and a separate engagement letter.  Any additional legal services, 

except those services incidental to and necessarily included in connection with this joint 

representation, must be reflected in separate correspondence, including litigation matters and 

bond counsel services.   

 

 The scope of our representation does not include advice or services regarding accounting, 

tax, engineering, financial matters, business management, and related non-legal matters and 

advice.  If you wish for us to consult with other professionals retained by one or more Counties 

regarding the subject of this limited joint representation, we will communicate with the Counties, 

in writing, to confirm the scope of such consultations prior to initiating the same. 

 

Billing Practices and Procedures 

 

Our services are billed hourly, at the rate in effect at the time services are 

performed.  The firm periodically reviews and adjusts billing rates, usually on an annual basis 

with increases effective January 1.  I will be chiefly responsible for providing the legal services 

in this matter, but may obtain the assistance of other attorneys or paralegals in the firm, including 

the attorneys listed below at the rates effective as of January 1, 2023: 

 

• Tim Whipple at $350 per hour 

• Steve Nadel, for general counsel, at $470 per hour 

• Elizabeth Burnett for general counsel at $220 per hour 

• Jason Craig, for litigation related questions, at $355 per hour 

 

I may also call upon others in the firm to assist us from time to time.  This may involve attorneys 

with specialized knowledge and skill, associate attorneys or legal or administrative 

assistants.  Work performed by other attorneys and legal assistants will be billed at their hourly 

rate in effect at the time the services are performed.   

 

Each County will be billed for its proportionate share of the total costs of the joint 

representation on a monthly basis, for all services rendered and all expenses advanced.  For this 

representation, the proportionate shares shall be equal, and shall be determined by dividing the 

fees and costs to be billed by the number of Counties jointly represented.  The firm will advance 

usual and necessary expenses incurred in connection with your representation if the individual 

amounts do not exceed $250.  If an expense exceeds that amount, the firm will forward the 



Page 5 

 

 

02203624-1\99520-379 

provider's statement directly to you for payment.  Your monthly statement will contain an 

itemized list of the services performed and expenses incurred.  If your County uses other services 

or has other open matters with the Firm, these expenses will be shown separately from those 

other costs. Should you have any questions about the statement, please call.  The firm reserves 

the right to withdraw from your representation if each monthly statement is not paid within 60 

days of issuance.   

 

Other Matters for Consideration 

 

As you are aware, our firm represents many political subdivisions, including cities, 

counties, school districts, and other companies and individuals.  It is possible that, during the 

time we are representing your County, one or more of our present or future clients will have 

transactions with the County or matters involving the IUB.  It is also likely that we may be asked 

to represent, in an unrelated matter, our other clients.  We do not believe such representation, if it 

occurs, will adversely affect our ability to jointly represent the Counties as provided in this letter, 

either because such matters will be sufficiently different from the County joint representation so 

as to make such representations not adverse, or because the potential for such adversity is remote 

or minor, and outweighed by the consideration that it is unlikely that advice given to the other 

client will be relevant to any aspect of our County joint representation.  We do reserve the right 

(and the County, by accepting our representation on these terms, consents thereto) to continue to 

represent, or to represent in the future, other clients on matters where the County joint interests 

may be adverse, but that do not have a substantial relationship to any matter on which we are 

representing the Counties. 

 

In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may send documents, information or data 

electronically or via the Internet or store electronic documents or data via computer software 

applications hosted remotely or utilize cloud-based storage. Your confidential electronic 

documents or data may be transmitted or stored using these methods. We may use third party 

service providers to store or transmit these documents or data. In using these electronic 

communication and storage methods, we employ reasonable efforts to keep such 

communications, documents and data secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable 

laws, regulations, and professional standards; however, you recognize and accept that we have 

no control over the unauthorized interception or breach of any communications, documents or 

data once it has been transmitted or if it has been subject to unauthorized access while stored, 

notwithstanding all reasonable security measures employed by us or by our third party vendors. 

By your acceptance of this letter, you consent to our use of these electronic devices and 

applications and submission of confidential client information to or through third party service 

providers during this engagement. 

 

 Next Steps: 

 

By executing this informed consent, joint representation letter, the County acknowledges 

that we have informed you of our potential representation of other Counties, as described herein, 

and we understand that you have determined to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that they 

seek our representation for the limited purposes described herein. 

 



Page 6 

 

 

02203624-1\99520-379 

If the contents of this letter are agreeable, please present this letter to the Board of 

Supervisors for approval, and then sign one copy of this letter and return it to me by email or by 

U.S. mail.   

 

If you disagree with or otherwise believe anything herein to be incorrect or mistaken in 

any way, then please let me know as soon as possible.  We will only be able to represent the 

Counties in this matter if all Counties are in agreement regarding this limited representation.   

 

Finally, should you have any questions on this matter, please don’t hesitate to contact me. 

The firm appreciates the opportunity to serve as your counsel in connection with this matter.  We 

look forward to working with you. 

 

             Very truly yours, 

 

         AHLERS & COONEY, P.C. 

By 

 /s/ Timothy J. Whipple 

 

             Timothy J. Whipple 

 

  



Page 7 

 

 

02203624-1\99520-379 

WAIVER AND CONSENT 
Woodbury County has had the opportunity to seek advice from independent counsel of 

their own choosing concerning the proposed concurrent representation and any conflict of 

interest associated therewith, and hereby knowingly and voluntarily waives and consents to 

any actual, potential, or perceived conflict of interest associated with Ahlers & Cooney, 

P.C.’s representation of Delaware, Floyd, Emmet, Butler, and Bremer along with 

Woodbury County, and any additional counties which seek to join the joint representation 

on the same terms and conditions, as set forth herein. 

 
Woodbury County* 

 

Dated:  __________________, 2023  By _____________________________ 

        

*Approved by action of the governing body on _________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

 



Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 

Timothy J. Whipple 
515.246.0379 
twhipple@ahlerslaw.com 

 

02203622-1\99520-379 

May 9, 2023 

 

Via E-Mail Only 

Matthew Ung, M.B.A., M.Th. 

Chairman Board of Supervisors  

Woodbury County  

620 Douglas St. 

Sioux City, IA 51101 

Cell: (712) 490-7852 

 

 

RE: Joint Representation of Woodbury County in Iowa Utilities Board Pipeline Permit 

Proceedings 

Concurrent (Joint) Representation and Conflict Waiver 

 

Dear Mr. Ung: 

 

This consent and waiver letter confirms that our Firm has been asked to represent 

Woodbury County, in addition to Dickinson, Shelby, Floyd, Kossuth, Wright, and Emmet 

Counties, acting by and through its Board of Supervisors, (individually a “County” and 

collectively the "Counties") in connection with certain matters arising from the state and local 

regulation of hazardous liquid pipelines, and in particular participation in pending contested case 

permit proceedings before the Iowa Utilities Board (the “IUB”) in connection with a carbon 

capture pipeline project proposed by Summit Carbon Solutions (“IUB Permit Proceedings”). 

 

As you know, our Firm has an existing and long-standing client relationship with all of 

the Counties. Given the proposed concurrent representation of the Counties, we cannot undertake 

a representation where we will advocate or negotiate for one party against the others.  However, 

our ethical rules allow us to undertake joint representation of all Counties in a specific matter 

provided that we can competently and diligently represent each client, and each client provides 

informed consent in writing to the representation. 

 

Joint Representation and Common Interests 

 

We believe that we can competently and diligently jointly represent the Counties in the 

limited matter of the IUB contested case permit proceedings.  In those proceedings, the legal 

issues involved are likely to impact either the zoning and home rule powers of each county 

within their jurisdiction or the zoning and home rule powers of counties generally. In the case of 

the former, there is no conflict because the jurisdiction of each county does not interfere with the 

other counties. In the case of the latter, the zoning and home rule powers of all counties are likely 

to be affected equally in which case there is a high likelihood no party will be adverse to the 

others.  



Page 2 

 

 

02203622-1\99520-379 

 

In short, as long as the Counties are in agreement on the applicable law, substantive 

policy issues, and tactical and strategic implementation of their shared goals, we believe that we 

can competently and diligently continue to represent the Counties and that representing the 

Counties in front of the IUB would not pose a conflict with our representation of them in other 

matters.  In the event there are actual disagreements of substance between the Counties on the 

applicable law, substantive policy issues, and tactical and strategic implementation of shared 

goals, we will attempt to resolve such disagreements or disputes amicably during the joint 

representation. However, if any one County or Counties remains in dispute or disagreement after 

good faith attempts at resolution, then one or more of the following may occur: 

 

(1) the County in disagreement may withdraw from the joint representation and resume 

separate participation in the proceedings; 

(2) the Firm may decline to advise any of the Counties with respect to such issue; and/or 

(3) the Firm may need to obtain informed consent or withdraw as counsel for one or 

more Counties, or from the joint representation in its entirety. Such withdrawal by the 

Firm would not generally, however, impact our ongoing representation of the 

Counties on any other matters not directly related to or arising from the IUB Permit 

Proceedings which are the focus of this limited joint representation.  

 

If the Counties desire to pursue this joint representation, the firm requires they agree to 

the following: 

 

• An acknowledgement that the Firm has been asked to represent them before the IUB in 

the IUB Permit Proceedings jointly with the other Counties; and 

 

• An acknowledgement from all Counties that the analyses, work product, and preparation 

of filings for each County on any given question, action, or issue arising during the 

proceedings is likely to be duplicative if performed separately by each individual County 

and that each County would rather pursue their goals now through a collaborative process 

than individually through preparation of their own analyses, work product, and filings, 

with the understanding and agreement that all Counties will receive the same work 

product unless they opt to make a separate filing or take some other action individually; 

and 

 

• An acknowledgement that engaging in this joint representation may prevent Ahlers & 

Cooney, P.C. from representing any one or more Counties should an adversarial dispute 

arise with the other Counties as a result of the IUB’s handling of the permit proceeding, 

provided however that the Firm may elect to continue with the representation of one or 

more Counties with informed consent or otherwise, consistent with attorney ethical rules 

on conflict of interests.  

 

In the course of the joint representation of the Counties, we will not have 

communications with one County relevant to the IUB proceedings that are confidential from the 

other Counties.  For matters relevant to this limited joint representation in the IUB proceedings, 

we have a legal and ethical duty to share with all of you the information we receive and the 

comments that we give.  In other words, your conversations with us with respect to this matter 



Page 3 

 

 

02203622-1\99520-379 

are not privileged as between the Counties and could not be claimed as privileged should any 

dispute arise between you.  If you want independent advice concerning this matter, or if you wish 

to be able to discuss matters in complete privacy, you will need to seek such advice from 

alternate counsel.   

 

In deciding whether or not to consent to the joint representation, the Counties should 

consider how our limited representation as described above could or may affect them.  For 

example, clients that are asked to consent to conflicts should consider whether there is any 

material risk that their attorney will be less diligent on their behalf due to the conflict.  Similarly, 

clients should consider whether there is any material risk that their confidential information or 

other proprietary matters will be used adversely to them due to the conflict.  We do not believe 

that our obligations of loyalty and confidentiality to any party will impair our ability to represent 

the Counties in this matter in the limited manner described herein, but of course you may ask me 

any questions you may have regarding the contents of this letter and you should seek the 

independent advice of your County Attorney or other lawyer outside of our Firm regarding the 

contents of this letter.  

 

In addition, this representation involves participation in the IUB Permit Proceedings for a 

pipeline that crosses multiple counties. There is a substantial possibility that other counties will 

also seek to participate in the same IUB Permit Proceedings, and we may also be asked to 

represent them in the Proceedings. We do not believe that such representation, if it occurs, will 

adversely affect our ability to jointly represent the Counties with respect to the permit 

proceedings because actual disagreements among the counties is unlikely. In the event that other 

counties seek our representation in the permit proceedings, we may request that the applicable 

county grant a conflict waiver and/or enter into this or another similar agreement for joint 

representation.  By entering into this joint representation, the Counties consent to the potential 

inclusion of additional counties in the joint representation without further action on their part, if 

such additional counties agree to the terms and conditions of this letter.   

 

Scope of Limited Representation 

 

If all Counties approve and consent to this joint representation as described above, then 

the additional terms of our representation are as follows: 

 

We understand the representation in this matter to include the following responsibilities: 

 

• Attend regular and special meetings of each County’s Board of Supervisors, and other 

meetings with state officials or pipeline company representatives as necessary and, in 

each instance, as may be requested by the Counties related to the IUB Permit 

Proceedings. 

• Advise the Counties on legal and regulatory matters related to state and federal pipeline 

regulations, state and federal permits, local ordinances and permits, and county home rule 

authority as and to the extent related to the IUB Permit Proceedings. 

• Represent the Counties in the IUB Permit Proceedings. 

• Review, draft, file, and, if applicable, negotiate all pleadings, motions, testimony, briefs, 

and other filings necessary and convenient as part of the IUB Permit Proceedings. 

 



Page 4 

 

 

02203622-1\99520-379 

We have discussed with you the fact that the complexity of local, state and federal 

pipeline regulations, along with the magnitude of the proposed carbon capture pipeline projects, 

lead to the possibility that the Counties’ ordinances might be challenged in court or that the IUB 

proceedings could result in further state or federal litigation resulting or arising from the IUB’s 

decisions and orders during the IUB Permit Proceedings. The scope of this representation is to 

assist with the participation in IUB Permit Proceedings as described above, which could include 

appeals or further judicial review by various parties to the Proceedings.  

 

At this time, the scope does not include defending the Counties against various legal 

claims not arising from the IUB Permit Proceedings, including administrative claims and state 

and federal litigation not related to the IUB Permit Proceedings. Representation of the Counties 

in such matters, if they arise, is subject to the specifics of such claims, a review of actual or 

potential conflicts of interest, and a separate engagement letter.  Any additional legal services, 

except those services incidental to and necessarily included in connection with this joint 

representation, must be reflected in separate correspondence, including litigation matters and 

bond counsel services.   

 

 The scope of our representation does not include advice or services regarding accounting, 

tax, engineering, financial matters, business management, and related non-legal matters and 

advice.  If you wish for us to consult with other professionals retained by one or more Counties 

regarding the subject of this limited joint representation, we will communicate with the Counties, 

in writing, to confirm the scope of such consultations prior to initiating the same. 

 

Billing Practices and Procedures 

 

Our services are billed hourly, at the rate in effect at the time services are 

performed.  The firm periodically reviews and adjusts billing rates, usually on an annual basis 

with increases effective January 1.  I will be chiefly responsible for providing the legal services 

in this matter, but may obtain the assistance of other attorneys or paralegals in the firm, including 

the attorneys listed below at the rates effective as of January 1, 2023: 

 

• Tim Whipple at $350 per hour 

• Steve Nadel, for general counsel, at $470 per hour 

• Elizabeth Burnett for general counsel at $220 per hour 

• Jason Craig, for litigation related questions, at $355 per hour 

 

I may also call upon others in the firm to assist us from time to time.  This may involve attorneys 

with specialized knowledge and skill, associate attorneys or legal or administrative 

assistants.  Work performed by other attorneys and legal assistants will be billed at their hourly 

rate in effect at the time the services are performed.   

 

Each County will be billed for its proportionate share of the total costs of the joint 

representation on a monthly basis, for all services rendered and all expenses advanced.  For this 

representation, the proportionate shares shall be equal, and shall be determined by dividing the 

fees and costs to be billed by the number of Counties jointly represented.  The firm will advance 

usual and necessary expenses incurred in connection with your representation if the individual 

amounts do not exceed $250.  If an expense exceeds that amount, the firm will forward the 



Page 5 

 

 

02203622-1\99520-379 

provider's statement directly to you for payment.  Your monthly statement will contain an 

itemized list of the services performed and expenses incurred.  If your County uses other services 

or has other open matters with the Firm, these expenses will be shown separately from those 

other costs. Should you have any questions about the statement, please call.  The firm reserves 

the right to withdraw from your representation if each monthly statement is not paid within 60 

days of issuance.   

 

Other Matters for Consideration 

 

As you are aware, our firm represents many political subdivisions, including cities, 

counties, school districts, and other companies and individuals.  It is possible that, during the 

time we are representing your County, one or more of our present or future clients will have 

transactions with the County or matters involving the IUB.  It is also likely that we may be asked 

to represent, in an unrelated matter, our other clients.  We do not believe such representation, if it 

occurs, will adversely affect our ability to jointly represent the Counties as provided in this letter, 

either because such matters will be sufficiently different from the County joint representation so 

as to make such representations not adverse, or because the potential for such adversity is remote 

or minor, and outweighed by the consideration that it is unlikely that advice given to the other 

client will be relevant to any aspect of our County joint representation.  We do reserve the right 

(and the County, by accepting our representation on these terms, consents thereto) to continue to 

represent, or to represent in the future, other clients on matters where the County joint interests 

may be adverse, but that do not have a substantial relationship to any matter on which we are 

representing the Counties. 

 

In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may send documents, information or data 

electronically or via the Internet or store electronic documents or data via computer software 

applications hosted remotely or utilize cloud-based storage. Your confidential electronic 

documents or data may be transmitted or stored using these methods. We may use third party 

service providers to store or transmit these documents or data. In using these electronic 

communication and storage methods, we employ reasonable efforts to keep such 

communications, documents and data secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable 

laws, regulations, and professional standards; however, you recognize and accept that we have 

no control over the unauthorized interception or breach of any communications, documents or 

data once it has been transmitted or if it has been subject to unauthorized access while stored, 

notwithstanding all reasonable security measures employed by us or by our third party vendors. 

By your acceptance of this letter, you consent to our use of these electronic devices and 

applications and submission of confidential client information to or through third party service 

providers during this engagement. 

 

 Next Steps: 

 

By executing this informed consent, joint representation letter, the County acknowledges 

that we have informed you of our potential representation of other Counties, as described herein, 

and we understand that you have determined to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that they 

seek our representation for the limited purposes described herein. 

 



Page 6 

 

 

02203622-1\99520-379 

If the contents of this letter are agreeable, please present this letter to the Board of 

Supervisors for approval, and then sign one copy of this letter and return it to me by email or by 

U.S. mail.   

 

If you disagree with or otherwise believe anything herein to be incorrect or mistaken in 

any way, then please let me know as soon as possible.  We will only be able to represent the 

Counties in this matter if all Counties are in agreement regarding this limited representation.   

 

Finally, should you have any questions on this matter, please don’t hesitate to contact me. 

The firm appreciates the opportunity to serve as your counsel in connection with this matter.  We 

look forward to working with you. 

 

             Very truly yours, 

 

         AHLERS & COONEY, P.C. 

By 

 /s/ Timothy J. Whipple 

 

             Timothy J. Whipple 

 

  



Page 7 

 

 

02203622-1\99520-379 

WAIVER AND CONSENT 
 

Woodbury County has had the opportunity to seek advice from independent counsel of its 

own choosing concerning the proposed concurrent representation and any conflict of 

interest associated therewith, and hereby knowingly and voluntarily waives and consents to 

any actual, potential, or perceived conflict of interest associated with Ahlers & Cooney, 

P.C.’s representation of Dickinson, Floyd, Shelby, Wright, Emmet and Kossuth along with 

Woodbury County, and any additional counties which seek to join the joint representation 

on the same terms and conditions, as set forth herein. 

 
Woodbury County* 

 

 

Dated:  __________________, 2023  By _____________________________ 

        

 

*Approved by action of the governing body on _________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

 



Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 

Timothy J. Whipple 
515.246.0379 
Twhipple@ahlerslaw.com 

 

 

WISHARD & BAILY - 1888; GUERNSEY & BAILY - 1893; BAILY & STIPP - 1901; STIPP, PERRY, BANNISTER & STARZINGER - 1914; BANNISTER, CARPENTER, 
 AHLERS & COONEY - 1950; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, ALLBEE, HAYNIE & SMITH - 1974; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, HAYNIE, SMITH & ALLBEE, P.C. - 1990 

May 9, 2023 

Via E-Mail 

Matthew Ung, M.B.A., M.Th. 

Chairman Board of Supervisors  

Woodbury County  

620 Douglas St. 

Sioux City, IA 51101 

Cell: (712) 490-7852 

 

 

RE: Representation in the Matter of Hazardous Liquid Pipeline Permits and Regulations 

 

Dear Mr. Ung: 

 

This letter will confirm that this firm has agreed to represent Woodbury County, Iowa, 

acting by and through its Board of Supervisors (the "County") in connection with certain matters 

arising from the state and local regulation of hazardous liquid pipelines, including (1) the review 

and analysis of local ordinances pertaining to the use of land for pipelines within the county; and 

(2) the participation in pending contested case permit proceedings before the Iowa Utilities Board 

(the “IUB”) in connection with certain proposed carbon capture pipelines;  

We understand the representation in this matter to include the following responsibilities: 

 

• Attend regular and special meetings of the Board of Supervisors, and other meetings with 

state officials or pipeline company representatives as necessary and, in each instance, as 

may be requested by the County. 

• Review, draft, and, if applicable, negotiate ordinances and resolutions. 

• Advise the County on legal and regulatory matters related to pipeline regulations, permits, 

local ordinances, and county home rule authority. 

• Represent the County in contested case and administrative rule-making matters before the 

Iowa Utilities Board, including any pending permit proceedings. 

We have discussed with you the fact that the complexity of local, state and federal pipeline 

regulations, along with the magnitude of the proposed carbon capture pipeline project, lead to the 

possibility that the County’s ordinances might be challenged in court. The scope of this 

representation is to assist with the review and drafting of the ordinances and participation in IUB 

proceedings as described above. At this time, the scope does not include defending the County 

against various legal claims, including administrative claims and state and federal litigation. 

Representation of the County in such matters, if they arise, is subject to the specifics of such claims, 

a review of actual or potential conflicts of interest, and a separate engagement letter.  However, if 



May 9, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

that becomes necessary, the firm is willing to consider changing the scope of representation to 

include such claims, subject to the afore-mentioned items. 

In each instance, the firm will represent the County as and to the extent referred to us by 

the supervisors and agreed to in writing.  Any additional legal services, except those services 

incidental to and necessarily included in connection with this representation, must be reflected in 

separate correspondence, including litigation matters and bond counsel services.   

 

I will be chiefly responsible for providing the legal services in this matter.  I may obtain 

the assistance of other attorneys or paralegals in the firm, including the attorneys listed below: 

• Steve Nadel, for general counsel  

• Elizabeth Burnett, for general counsel 

• Jason Craig, for litigation-related questions 

• Other attorneys as required 

Limited Scope of Representation:  The scope of our representation does not include 

advice or services regarding accounting, tax, engineering, financial matters, business management, 

and related non-legal matters and advice.  If you wish for us to consult with other professionals 

retained by you regarding this matter, we will communicate with you, in writing, to confirm the 

scope of such consultations prior to initiating the same. 

 

Our services are billed hourly, at the rate in effect at the time services are performed.  The 

firm periodically reviews and adjusts billing rates, usually on an annual basis with increases 

effective January 1.  At present, the billing rates for the above listed attorneys, effective as of 

January 1, 2023, are: 

• Tim Whipple at $350 per hour 

• Steve Nadel at $470 per hour 

• Elizabeth Burnett at $220 per hour 

• Jason Craig at $355 per hour 

I may also call upon others in the firm to assist us from time to time.  This may involve attorneys 

with specialized knowledge and skill, associate attorneys or legal or administrative 

assistants.  Work performed by other attorneys and legal assistants will be billed at their hourly 

rate in effect at the time the services are performed.  You will be billed on a monthly basis for all 

services rendered and all expenses advanced.  The firm will advance usual and necessary expenses 

incurred in connection with your representation if the individual amounts do not exceed $250.  If 

an expense exceeds that amount, the firm will forward the provider's statement directly to you for 

payment.  Your monthly statement will contain an itemized list of the services performed and 

expenses incurred.  Should you have any questions about the statement, please call.  The firm 

reserves the right to withdraw from your representation if each monthly statement is not paid 

within 60 days of issuance.   

 

As you are aware, our firm represents many political subdivisions, including cities, 

counties, school districts, and other companies and individuals.  It is possible that, during the time 

we are representing the County, one or more of our present or future clients will have transactions 



May 9, 2023 

Page 3 

 

 

with the County or matters involving the IUB.  It is also likely that we may be asked to represent, 

in an unrelated matter, our other clients.  We do not believe such representation, if it occurs, will 

adversely affect our ability to represent the County as provided in this letter, either because such 

matters will be sufficiently different from the County representation so as to make such 

representations not adverse, or because the potential for such adversity is remote or minor, and 

outweighed by the consideration that it is unlikely that advice given to the other client will be 

relevant to any aspect of our County representation.  We do reserve the right (and the County, by 

accepting our representation on these terms, consents thereto) to continue to represent, or to 

represent in the future, other clients on matters where the County interests may be adverse, but that 

do not have a substantial relationship to any matter on which we are representing the County. 

 

In addition, this representation involves participation in permit proceedings at the IUB for 

a pipeline that crosses multiple counties. There is a substantial possibility that other counties will 

also seek to participate in the same permit proceedings, and we may also be asked to represent 

them in the proceedings. We do not believe that such representation, if it occurs, will adversely 

affect our ability to represent the County with respect to the permit proceedings because actual 

disagreements among the counties is unlikely. In the event that other counties seek our 

representation in the permit proceedings, we may request that the County grant a conflict waiver 

and/or enter into an agreement for joint representation. 

 

You acknowledge that we have informed you of our potential representation of other 

counties, as described herein, and we understand that you have determined to recommend to the 

Board of Supervisors that they seek our representation for the limited purposes described herein. 

 

In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may send documents, information or 

data electronically or via the Internet or store electronic documents or data via computer software 

applications hosted remotely or utilize cloud-based storage. Your confidential electronic 

documents or data may be transmitted or stored using these methods. We may use third party 

service providers to store or transmit these documents or data. In using these electronic 

communication and storage methods, we employ reasonable efforts to keep such communications, 

documents and data secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable laws, regulations, 

and professional standards; however, you recognize and accept that we have no control over the 

unauthorized interception or breach of any communications, documents or data once it has been 

transmitted or if it has been subject to unauthorized access while stored, notwithstanding all 

reasonable security measures employed by us or by our third party vendors. By your acceptance 

of this letter, you consent to our use of these electronic devices and applications and submission 

of confidential client information to or through third party service providers during this 

engagement. 

 

If these arrangements are acceptable with you, please present this letter to the Board of 

Supervisors for approval, and then sign one copy of this letter and return it to me by email or by 

U.S. mail.   

 

 

 



May 9, 2023 

Page 4 

 

 

The firm appreciates the opportunity to serve as your counsel in connection with this 

matter.  We look forward to working with you. 

 

                  Sincerely,  

         AHLERS & COONEY, P.C. 

By: 

/s/ Timothy J. Whipple 
               Timothy J. Whipple 

TJW:im 

 

 

Accepted: 

 

Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa* 

 

By ____________________________________ Date: ______________________________ 

 

*Approved by action of the Board of Supervisors on _________________, 2023. 

 

 

 
02203951-1\99520-379 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

5/11/23 5/16/23

Supervisors Taylor & Nelson

On Wednesday, May 10th Emergency Services Director Scott Mitchell, Building Services Director Kenny Schmitz, Supervisors Mark
Nelson and Jeremy Taylor met in order to discuss the future of the building.

We do not believe that at this point, there is good justification for tuckpointing at $235,000 given that it could potentially be an
every-10 to 15 year need, something that could in and of itself exceed a $1.2 million bond issue over a 50-year time period.

The old 1916 school does house the new(er) 2004 boilers which run lead-lag and only need to run one to service the space that is
heated. This extends the 20-year boilers to potentially 35-40 years. The building also serves as a bomb shelter and the backup
communications center.

It does not seem feasible at this point to replace the building for a variety of reasons.

Action Items:
� Kenny Schmitz will contact Boone Brothers regarding roof age, points of opportunity, and what should be done to look at a short-

to-medium long-term plan.

� Scott will look at furniture, fixtures, and equipment to improve the suitability of living conditions in order to retain and recruit in a
tough labor market.

� Scott Mitchell will contact Mike from Boiler Services, Inc. of Sioux City in order to discuss steam trap replacements for
efficiency’s sake. Additionally, a critical next step to address the bats issue is to cut the top four feet of the stack, properly line it,
and tuckpoint/reinforce just that area.

� Scott Mitchell will contact Electronic Engineering regarding the camera system, down camera, and failed hard drive.

� The Board of Supervisors will look potentially at a longer-term sinking fund in order to augment a 10-year plan in discussions for
the future.

Information regarding future direction and recommendations for Climbing Hills Emergency Services
Building

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

Information

Information


	Insert from: "5-16-23_2nd_Public_Hearing_Reading_Amendment_Ordinance_56_61A.pdf"
	amending portions of Woodbury County Ordinance #56: An amendment to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements in the ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in unincorporated Woodbury County.

	Insert from: "BOS Sidwell Parcel Fabric Agreement.pdf"
	Insert from: "Woodbury County IA - Parcel Fabric Migration Agreement.pdf"
	Contents
	1. Preamble
	2. Scope of Work
	2.1 Project Initiation
	2.1.1 Kick-Off Meeting
	2.1.2 Workflow Discovery

	2.2 Parcel Fabric Migration
	2.2.1 Data Cleanup
	2.2.2 Data Staging
	2.2.3 Data Loading
	2.2.4 Pilot Delivery

	2.2 ArcGIS Portal Deployment
	2.3 Implementation & Training
	2.3.1 Installation and Delivery
	2.3.2 Basic ArcGIS Pro Training
	2.3.3 Advanced Parcel Editing in ArcGIS Pro Training

	2.4 Parcel Fabric Workflow Support

	3. Project Costs
	4. Additional Provisions
	5. Authorization
	Woodbury County, IA
	The Sidwell Company


	Insert from: "BOS Security Awareness and Acceptable Use.pdf"
	ADPACAF.tmp
	Woodbury County, Iowa
	security awareness policy
	Purpose
	Scope
	Responsibility
	Definitions
	Policy/Procedure

	ADP5526.tmp
	Woodbury County, Iowa
	Purpose
	Scope
	Responsibility
	Definitions
	Policy/Procedure



